GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

|

O

ONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

NTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION., SHOW & $PDORTS FACILITIES

m

Agenda

Board of Directors

Friday, September 2, 2011

Following CAA Operations Committee Meeting
Kent County Commission Chambers

300 Monroe, NW - Grand Rapids, MI

1. Call to Order
2. New Websites Revealed
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting

4. Committee Reports

A. Operations Committee
i. Report from Experience Grand Rapids

B. Finance Committee
i. Approval of SMG Financial Statements
ii. Approval of CAA Financial Statements
iii. Renewal of Directors & Officers Insurance
iv. FY 2010 Audit Plan

5. Approval of Application to Liquor Control Commission
For Special License

6. Booking Policy Update
2 SMG Report and Facilities Calendars
8. Public Comment

9. Adjournment

Steven R. Heacock
Lynne lke

Action

information

Action
Action
Action
Action

Action

Information

Information

Next Meeting Date: Friday, October 7, 2011, immediately
following the CAA Operations Committee Meeting



Item 3

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Friday, June 3, 2011

1. Call to Order
Steve Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs

recorded the meeting minutes. Chair Heacock added First Addendum to Management Agreement to the
agenda, after item#6.

Attendance

Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chair

Lew Chamberlin

Birgit Klohs
Gary Mclnerney

Members Absent: George Heartwell
Joe Tomaselli
Floyd Wilson, Jr.

Staff/Others: Leann Arkema Gilda’s Club Grand Rapids
David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Daryl Delabbio Kent County
Brian Dykema Interested Citizen
Scott Gorsline Grand Rapids Griffins
George Helmstead Experience Grand Rapids
Lyndsey Horvath SMG
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Jackie Morse SMG
Cheryl Oliver SMG
Marcus Scott SMG
Doug Small Experience Grand Rapids
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG
Richard Wendt Dickinson Wright
Robert White CAA

2. Recognition/Introduction of SMG Box Office Staff

Chris Machuta introduced the key box office staff, Marcus Scott, Box Office Manager; Lyndsey Horvath,
Assistant Box Office Manager; Jackie Morse, Assistant Box Office Manager; and Cheryl Oliver,
Premium Seats/Suites Manager. Mr. Machuta praised the box office staff for handling all of the ticketing
for Gilda’s Club LaughFest, whether or not the event was held in one of the CAA venues. Leann



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
June 3, 2011 -2

Arkema, Executive Director of Gilda’s Club, expressed her admiration for the box office staff and how
proud she was to work with them. All told, attendance at LaughFest was 55,376. 228 events were
held at 49 locations in and around the Grand Rapids area. Ticket sales came from 25 states and
Canada. Leeann presented SMG staff with mementos of her appreciation. Chair Heacock
commended the box office staff on their extremely important work, adding that they leave an
impression second to none. Mr. Chamberlin agreed, stating that the box office is the face of the
facility and the CAA appreciates the great job it does.

3. Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the Minutes of the May 5, 2011,
meeting of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. The motion carried
unanimously.

4. Committee Reports

A. Operations Committee. Mr. Chamberlin stated there were no additional comments from the
meeting held earlier.

B. Finance Committee. Ms. Klohs stated there were no additional comments from the meeting
held earlier.

5. FY 2012 Budgets

Ms. Klohs stated that the proposed FY 2012 budgets had been reviewed thoroughly by the Finance
Committee, Operations Committee, and CAA Board.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. McInerney, moved to approve (i) the FY 2012 DeVos Place® and
Van Andel Arena® Operating Budgets and (ii) the FY 2012 Consolidated CAA Operating/Capital
Budgets. The motion carried unanimously.

6. 2012-2016 DeVos Place® Rate Sheets

Ms. Klohs stated that the rate sheets had been reviewed thoroughly by the Finance Committee, Operations
Committee, and CAA Board.

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. McInerney, moved to approve the2012-2016 DeVos Place® rate
sheets. The motion carried unanimously.

7. First Addendum to Management Agreement with SMG

Boardmember Klohs, supported by Boardmember Chamberlin, moved the adoption of the
following resolution:

WHEREAS, the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the “CAA”)
and SMG have entered into a Management Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated and effective as

of July 1, 2011 to promote, operate, maintain, market and manage the Van Andel Arena and
DeVos Place; and



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
June 3,2011 -3

WHEREAS, the CAA desires to engage SMG to provide additional services outside and
beyond the scope of services in the Agreement, and

WHERFEAS, the additional services shall be performed as described and in accordance
with a First Addendum to Management Agreement (the “First Addendum”) dated as of July I,
2011.

RESOLVED:

1. That the First Addendum substantially in the form presented at this meeting is
hereby approved with such modifications not materially adverse to the CAA approved as to
content by the CAA Chairman and as to form by the CAA’s legal counsel and the CAA Chairman
is authorized and directed to execute the approved First Addendum for and on behalf of the
CAA.

2. That all resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be, and the
same are hereby, rescinded to the extent of such conflict.

Motion approved unanimously.

8. SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at Van Andel Arena®
and DeVos Place®.

9, Public Comment

None.

10.  Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Friday, August 5, 2011, in the Kent County Commission
Chambers, Kent County Administration Building, 300 Monroe Avenue, NW, immediately following the
CAA Operation Committee meeting.

11. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:10 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2011

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
441 74 515 494 21
489,342 54,222 543,564 531,500 12,064
2,248,794 327,058 2,575,852 2,409,380 166,472
1,744,307 251,835 1,996,142 1,907,266 88,876
3,993,101 578,893 4,571,994 4,316,646 255,348
167,607 22,000 189,607 190,950 (1,343)
4,160,708 600,893 4,761,601 4,507,596 254,005
128,481 38,928 167,409 169,612 2,203
198,648 30,140 228,788 221,935 (6,853)
83,878 13,057 96,935 103,669 6,734
1,089,982 272,157 1,362,139 1,485,525 123,386
748,169 135,256 883,425 866,676 (16,749)
76,313 11,039 87,352 79,211 (8,141)
284,087 59,536 343,623 355,664 12,041
1,717,184 331,235 2,048,419 1,936,247 (112,172)
4,326,741 891,348 5,218,090 5,218,539 449
(166,033) (290,455) (456,489) (710,943) 254,454
- 0 -
(166,033) (290,455) (456,489) (710,943) 254,454

DeVos Place performed well during the month of April when compared
to both budget and forecast. The overage came mostly from the very
successful Jeff Beck and Jackson Browne shows and a continued

strength of ancillary income.




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED APRIL 30, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH April April April

Actual Budget FY 2010
Number of Events 46 36 49
Attendance 36,278 29,600 36,322
Direct Event Income $198,637 $156,851 $212,716
Ancillary Income 187,026 145,421 182,876
Other Income 17,615 13,689 20,633
Indirect Expenses (422,924) (434,879) (443,907)
Net Income ($19,646) ($118,917) ($27,682)
YTD YTD 2011 YTD 2011 YTD 2010

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 441 418 435
Attendance 489,342 464,510 482,033
Direct Event Income $2,248,794 $2,109,803 $2,148,062
Ancillary Income 1,744,307 1,630,592 1,588,368
Other Income 167,607 163,467 137,785
Indirect Expenses (4,326,741) (4,348,790) (4,156,309)
Net Income ($166,033) ($444,928) ($282,094)
EVENT INCOME

Event income came in ahead of budget for the month with the 2 near sold out concerts

in the theater leading the way in the overage.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in ahead of budget for the month as spending in all areas continue

to be positive.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month.




Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelty Sales
Booth Cleaning
Telephone/Long Distance
Electrical Services
Audio Visual
Internet Services
Equipment Rental

Total Ancillary Income
Other Event income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income(Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net iIncome(Loss)

For the Ten Months Ending April 30, 2011

DeVos Place
Income Statement

Current Month  Current Month Current Month  Yearto Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year

$224,233 $162,800 $61,433 $213,821 $2,386,125 $2,148,896 $237,229 $2,174,575
140,995 141,914 (919) 169,545 1,706,324 1,670,204 36,120 1,731,544
(166,591) (147,863) (18,728) (170,650) (1,843,655) (1,709,297) (134,358) (1,758,057)
198,637 156,851 41,786 212,716 2,248,794 2,109,803 138,991 2,148,062
13,636 5,951 7,685 8,051 153,156 117,031 36,125 124,749
52,612 46,148 6,464 81,403 485,599 465,421 20,178 425,383
1,161 1,225 (64) 2,155 7.810 13,131 (5,221) 9,948
29,550 15,294 14,256 27,291 251,206 236,420 14,786 214,728
0 1,404 (1,404) 113 225 18,840 (18,615) 4,170
30,530 33,652 (3,122) 30,207 375,101 364,510 10,591 383,050
35,855 25,944 9,911 21,378 265,176 232,302 32,874 251,121
5,484 3,523 1,961 2,798 55,486 37,113 18,373 47,185
18,198 12,280 5,918 9,480 150,448 145,824 4,624 128,034
187,026 145,421 41,605 182,876 1,744,307 1,630,592 113,715 1,588,368
15,583 8,856 6,727 17,806 135,913 115,137 20,776 106,596
15,583 8,856 6,727 17,806 135,913 115,137 20,776 106,596
401,246 311,128 90,118 413,398 4,129,014 3,855,532 273,482 3,843,026
1,399 2,000 (601) 1,802 16,066 20,000 (3,934) 18,135
633 2,833 (2,200) 1,025 15,628 28,330 (12,702) 13,054
2,032 4,833 (2,801) 2,827 31,694 48,330 (16,636) 31,189
403,278 315,961 87,317 416,225 4,160,708 3,903,862 256,846 3,874,215
207,501 225,288 (17,787) 224,328 2,293,678 2,252,880 40,798 2,232,723
60,819 58,848 1,971 74,687 652,947 588,480 64,467 618,908
(112,231) (122,456) 10,225 (137,004) (1,275,847) (1,224,560) (51,287) (1,239,610)
156,089 161,680 (5,591) 162,011 1,670,778 1,616,800 53,978 1,612,021
27,470 21,200 6,270 30,074 247,464 212,000 35,464 245,347
25,782 28,058 (2,276) 28,900 279,540 280,580 (1,040) 241,640
7,042 10,312 (3,270) 5,370 76,205 103,120 (26,915) 69,116
34,949 41,941 (6,992) 69,390 352,773 419,410 (66,637) 389,068
20,005 21,500 (1,495) 7,597 162,929 215,000 (62,071) 131,082
15,173 17,465 (2,292) 16,412 158,533 174,650 (16,117) 199,358
123,046 119,500 3,546 110,930 1,254,838 1,195,000 59,838 1,136,451
13,368 13,223 145 13,223 133,681 132,230 1,451 132,226
422,924 434,879 (11,955) 443,907 4,326,741 4,348,790 (22,049) 4,156,309
(19,6486) (118,918) 99,272 (27,682) (166,033) (444,928) 278,895 {282,094)
(19,646) (118,918) 99,272 (27,682) (166,033) {444,928) 278,895 (282,094)

3



SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For the Ten Months Ending April 30, 2011

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 105 105 108,618 131,250 1,439,960 1,493,520
Consumer/Gated Shows - 48 48 154,251 137,010 937,585 916,272
Devos Performance Hall 134 119 149,978 498,625 920,128 762,409
Banquets 34 32 22,719 20,800 222,225 228,419
Meetings 75 78 22,052 19,500 356,855 230,022
Other 45 36 31,724 16,200 252,261 224,892
GRAND TOTALS 441 418 489,342 823,385 4,129,014 3,855,532
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 23.81% 25.12% 22.20% 15.94% 34.87% 38.74%
Consumer/Gated Shows 10.88% 11.48% 31.52% 16.64% 22.71% 23.77%
Devos Performance Hall 30.39% 28.47% 30.65% 60.56% 22.28% 19.77%
Ballroom Exclusive 7.71% 7.66% 4.64% 2.53% 5.38% 5.92%
Meetings 17.01% 18.66% 4.51% 2.37% 8.64% 5.97%

Other 10.20% 8.61% 6.48% 1.97% 6.11% 5.83%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

DeVos Place
Balance Sheet
As of April 30, 2011

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

1,194,831
681,223
94,240
$1,970,294
$1,970,294
119,980
351,615
35,645
729,272
$1,236,513
(850,000)
1,190,086
559,729
(166,034)
$733,781
$1,970,294




SMG - DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of April 30, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 66,542
Ticketing 15,640
Merchandise 1,202
Decorating 29,550
Audio/Visual 35,855
Van Andel Arena 98,482
Operating 279,166
Over 30 Days 101,968
Over 60 Days 37,684
Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions 5,736
Paragon Leather 2,110
Saigon Entertainment 5,002
Grinder Promotions 2,286

Total Accounts Receivable 681,223



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2010
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 810,593 (456,489) 354,104 916,360
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 810,593 (456,489) (345,896) 216,360

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Base Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 317,343
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,590,591 4,761,601 9,352,192 9,777,929
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,000,000 8,900,000
Revenue Excess (209,409) 561,601 352,192 877,929
Incentive Fee ** - - - 238,379
Total SMG Management Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 555,722

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED APRIL 30, 2011

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 99 4 103 i1 (8)
ATTENDANCE 521,853 34,000 555,853 591,650 (35,797)
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 914,165 20,936 935,101 1,460,958 (525,857)
ANCILLARY INCOME 1,121,517 110,234 1,231,751 1,230,438 1,313
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 2,035,682 131,170 2,166,852 2,691,396 (524,544)
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 1,897,732 526,007 2,423,739 2,444,775 (21,036)
TOTAL INCOME 3,933,414 657,177 4,590,591 5,136,171 (545,580)
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 142,672 38,534 181,206 191,113 9,907
FINANCE 167,234 43,447 210,681 226,903 16,222
MARKETING 233,661 51,732 285,393 289,229 3,836
OPERATIONS 1,201,709 310,342 1,512,051 1,607,955 95,904
BOX OFFICE 98,643 25,729 124,372 133,630 9,258
LUXURY SEATING 46,326 11,265 57,591 87,276 29,685
SKYWALK ADMIN 22,137 4,427 26,564 23,956 (2,608)
OVERHEAD 1,147,617 234,523 1,382,140 1,366,494 (15,646)

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 3,059,999 719,999 3,779,998 3,926,556 146,558
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 873,415 (62,822) 810,593 1,209,615 (399,022)
LESS INCENTIVE FEE 0 - -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE 873,415 (62,822) 810,593 1,209,615 (399,022)

Comments:

The first of two Bob Seger dates were hosted during the month of

April to great success. April also saw the conclusion to the Griffins
season as they were eliminated from playoff consideration. Overall the
Arena performed consistent with budget on revenue and ahead of
budget on expenses which was more timing than savings.

Forecast for the balance of the fiscal year remains consistent with last
month's with a slight decrease in anticipated revenue and expenses.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED APRIL 30, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH April April April

Actual Budget FY 2010
Number of Events 6 5 8
Attendance 50,339 34,500 48,042
Direct Event Income $43,026 $81,568 $198,890
Ancillary Income 107,961 52,614 103,095
Other Income 203,621 199,887 277,914
Indirect Expenses (258,608) (327,214) (294,148)
Net Income $96,000 $6,855 $285,751
YTD YTD 2011 YTD 2011 YTD 2010

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 99 105 93
Attendance 521,853 535,500 507,846
Direct Event Income $914,165 $1,300,867 $1,262,256
Ancillary Income 1,121,517 1,070,613 1,229,415
Other Income 1,897,732 2,044,366 2,066,270
Indirect Expenses (3,059,999) (3,272,140) (3,028,854)
Net Income $873,415 $1,143,706 $1,529,087

EVENT INCOME

Direct event income fell below budget for the month. This shortfall was mainly due to the Celtic
Woman concert falling below typical concert averages.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in ahead of budget for the month on the success of the Bob Seger concert
and the Get Motivated Seminar, both of which saw nice increases in per caps when compared

to their last visits.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in ahead of budget overall, however, consistent with forecast.




Current Month Current Month

Van Andel Arena
Income Statement
For the Ten Months Ending April 30, 2011

Current Month Year to Date  Year to Date

Year to Date

Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelty Sales
Booth Cleaning
Audio Visual
Other Ancillary

Total Ancillary Income
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements
Advertising
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income(Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(Loss)

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
$123,632 $94,874 28,758 $190,110 $1,489,417 $1,764,967 (275,550) $1,649,787
190,537 94,242 96,295 300,424 1,473,861 1,314,843 159,018 1,623,837
(271,143) (107,548) (163,595) (291,644)  (2,049,113)  (1,778,943) (270,170)  (2,011,368)
43,026 81,568 (38,542) 198,890 914,165 1,300,867 (386,702) 1,262,256
90,868 40,758 50,110 75,653 955,123 884,290 70,833 1,028,765
6,430 3,850 2,580 12,278 64,511 62,926 1,585 81,647
9,928 7,236 2,692 13,674 73,617 92,697 (18,980) 86,215
(35) 0 (35) 0 320 0 320 265
0 0 0 0 36 0 36 23
770 770 0 1,490 27,910 30,800 (2,890) 32,500
107,961 52,614 55,347 103,095 1,121,517 1,070,613 50,904 1,229,415
29,268 30,820 (1,552) 64,496 268,780 340,345 (71,565) 341,835
29,268 30,820 (1,552) 64,496 268,780 340,345 (71,565) 341,835
180,255 165,002 15,253 366,481 2,304,462 2,711,825 (407,363) 2,833,506
126,822 110,067 16,755 152,974 1,114,982 1,114,021 961 1,179,751
44,000 52,083 (8,083) 44,000 454,724 520,830 (66,106) 476,534
3,531 6,917 (3,386) 16,444 59,246 69,170 (9,924) 68,150
174,353 169,067 5,286 213,418 1,628,952 1,704,021 (75,069) 1,724,435
354,608 334,069 20,539 579,899 3,933,414 4,415,846 (482,432) 4,557,941
147,896 160,183 (12,287) 166,996 1,550,127 1,601,830 (51,703) 1,535,951
42,383 42,846 (463) 43,657 415,160 428,460 (13,300) 404,039
(77,259) (72,446) (4,813) (93,211) (686,752) (724,460) 37,708 (697,941)
113,020 130,583 (17,563) 117,442 1,278,535 1,305,830 (27,295) 1,242,049
18,800 21,300 (2,500) 19,106 199,365 213,000 (13,635) 199,246
15,428 30,742 (15,314) 25,678 273,994 307,420 (33,426) 281,759
4,117 4,996 (879) 2,216 21,625 49,960 (28,335) 22,314
9,555 17,943 (8,388) 16,359 117,679 179,430 (61,751) 136,283
6,254 19,883 (13,629) 10,059 138,448 198,830 (60,382) 124,076
11,033 11,394 (361) 11,572 110,327 113,940 (3,613) 133,437
67,033 77,150 (10,117) 78,493 785,345 771,500 13,845 757,463
13,368 13,223 145 13,223 134,681 132,230 2,451 132,227
258,608 327,214 (68,606) 294,148 3,059,999 3,272,140 (212,141) 3,028,854
96,000 6,855 89,145 285,751 873,415 1,143,706 (270,291) 1,529,087
96,000 6,855 89,145 285,751 873,415 1,143,706 (270,291) 1,529,087

Z



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Event Summary

For the Ten Months Ended April 30, 2011

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
21 23 63,325 58,500 193,700 221,717
10 14 48,399 59,500 386,171 405,550
12 16 98,451 147,500 742,175 1,360,817
40 40 236,698 220,000 600,211 477,120
16 8 72,980 50,000 382,206 246,621
99 101 519,853 535,500 2,304,462 2,711,825
21.21% 22.77% 12.18% 10.92% 8.41% 8.18%
10.10% 13.86% 9.31% 11.11% 16.76% 14.95%
12.12% 15.84% 18.94% 27.54% 3221% 50.18%
40.40% 39.60% 45.53% 41.08% 26.05% 17.59%
16.16% 7.92% 14.04% 9.34% 16.59% 9.09%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Van Andel Arena
Balance Sheet
As of April 30,2011

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

4,152,577
467,936
133,236
$4,753,750
$4,753,750
311,696
504,180
1,144,813
2,063,036
$4,023,726
(1,900,000)
728,725
1,027,882
873,417
$730,024
$4,753,750




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of April 30, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage 123,206
Ticketing 34,546
Merchandise -
Permanent Advertising -

DeVos Place (98,482)

Operating 258,118
Over 30 Days 117,548
Over 60 Days 33,000
Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable 467,936



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2010
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 810,593 (456,489) 354,104 916,360
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 810,593 (456,489) (345,896) 216,360

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Base Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 317,343
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,590,591 4,761,601 9,352,192 9,777,929
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,000,000 8,900,000
Revenue Excess (209,409) 561,601 352,192 877,929
Incentive Fee ** - - - 238,379
Total SMG Management Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 555,722

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MAY 31, 2011

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
496 29 525 494 31
544,520 35,000 579,520 531,500 48,020
2,478,413 120,000 2,598,413 2,409,380 189,033
1,921,995 150,000 2,071,995 1,907,266 164,729
4,400,408 270,000 4,670,408 4,316,646 353,762
176,792 13,500 190,292 190,950 (658)
4,577,200 283,500 4,860,700 4,507,596 353,104
140,366 23,400 163,766 169,612 5,846
216,620 17,500 234,120 221,935 (12,185)
88,516 9,600 98,116 103,669 5,553
1,208,608 165,300 1,373,908 1,485,525 111,617
831,406 49,877 881,283 866,676 (14,607)
83,069 5,200 88,269 79,211 (9,058)
309,546 32,100 341,646 355,664 14,018
1,871,765 195,500 2,067,265 1,936,247 (131,018)
4,749,896 498,477 5,248,373 5,218,539 (29,834)
(172,696) (214,977) (387,673) (710,943) 323,270
. ) .
(172,696) (214,977) (387,673) (710,943) 323,270

DeVos Place continues to perform very strong over the course of the
fiscal year and is anticipated to come in well ahead of budget. The
strength of the year continues to be a combination of additional
bookings and an increase in average use/spending for the events

hosted.




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED MAY 31, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH May May May

Actual Budget FY 2010
Number of Events 55 47 53
Attendance 55,178 38,400 60,792
Direct Event Income $229,619 $170,621 $218,071
Ancillary Income 177,689 167,023 134,253
Other Income 9,184 13,791 23,252
Indirect Expenses (423,154) (434,879) (379,865)
Net Income ($6,662) ($83,444) ($4,289)
YTD YTD 2011 YTD 2011 YTD 2010

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 496 465 488
Attendance 544,520 502,910 542,825
Direct Event Income $2,478,413 $2,280,424 $2,366,133
Ancillary Income 1,921,995 1,797,615 1,722,620
Other Income 176,791 177,258 161,037
Indirect Expenses (4,749,896) (4,783,669) (4,536,170)
Net Income ($172,697) ($528,372) ($286,380)
EVENT INCOME

Direct event income came in well ahead of budget and a little ahead of revised forecast. The
overage comes from a combination of multiple events hosted during the month.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in consistent with budget for the month with excess revenue in catering
helping to offset some shortfalls in other areas.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month.




Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Anclillary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelty Sales
Booth Cleaning
Telephone/Long Distance
Electrical Services
Audio Visual
Intemet Services
Equipment Rental

Total Anclilary Income
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income(Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(Loss)

Current Month  Current Month

DeVos Place
Income Statement
For the Eleven Months Ending May 31, 2011

Current Month  Year to Date

Year to Date

Year to Date

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
$250,324 $175,300 $75,024 $214,309 $2,636,449 $2,324,196 $312,253 $2,388,884
189,266 147,765 41,501 334,889 1,895,590 1,817,969 77,621 2,066,433
(209,971) (152,444) (57,527) (331,127) (2,053,626) (1,861,741) (191,885) (2,089,184)
229,619 170,621 58,998 218,071 2,478,413 2,280,424 197,989 2,366,133
12,877 5614 7.263 11,250 166,033 122,645 43,388 135,999
72,592 54,850 17,742 60,599 558,191 520,271 37,920 485,982
319 845 (526) 1,664 8,229 13,976 (5.747) 11,612
12,105 17,773 (5,668) 6,691 263,311 254,193 9,118 221,419
0 1,620 (1,620) 225 225 20,460 (20,235) 4,395
32,821 38,960 (6,139) 17,243 407,922 403,470 4,452 400,293
28,789 29,895 (1,108) 21,074 293,964 262,197 31,767 272,194
2,570 4,511 (1,941) 1,271 58,055 41,624 16,431 48,456
16,616 12,955 2,661 14,2368 166,065 168,779 7.286 142,270
177,689 167,023 10,666 134,253 1,921,995 1,797,615 124,380 1,722,620
6,246 8,958 (2,712) 20,802 142,159 124,095 18,064 127,498
6,246 8,958 (2,712) 20,902 142,159 124,095 18,064 127,498
413,554 346,602 66,952 373,226 4,542,567 4,202,134 340,433 4,216,251
1,567 2,000 (433) 1,802 17,633 22,000 (4,367) 19,937
1,371 2,833 (1,462) 548 16,999 31,163 (14,164) 13,602
2,938 4,833 (1,895) 2,350 34,632 53,163 (18,531) 33,539
416,492 351,435 65,057 375,576 4,577,199 4,255,297 321,902 4,249,790
249,710 225,288 24,422 265,416 2,543,388 2,478,168 65,220 2,498,139
80,457 58,848 21,609 73,212 733,403 647,328 86,075 692,119
(157,419) (122,456) (34,963) (186,797) (1,433,266) (1,347,016) (86,250) (1,426,407)
172,748 161,680 11,068 151,831 1,843,525 1,778,480 65,045 1,763,851
24,117 21,200 2,917 24,599 271,581 233,200 38,381 269,946
16,767 28,058 (11,291) 20,710 296,308 308,638 (12,330) 262,349
30,425 10,312 20,113 4,594 106,630 113,432 (6,802) 73,710
31,288 41,941 (10,653) 21,930 384,062 461,351 (77,289) 410,998
6,688 21,500 (14,812) 8,454 159,617 236,500 (76,883) 139,535
16,120 17,465 (1,345) 20,743 174,653 192,115 (17,462) 220,101
111,633 119,500 (7,867) 113,781 1,366,471 1,314,500 51,971 1,250,231
13,368 13,223 145 13,223 147,049 145,453 1,596 145,449
423,154 434,879 (11,725) 379,865 4,749,896 4,783,669 (33,773) 4,536,170
(6,662) (83,444) 76,782 (4,289) {172,697) (528,372) 355,675 (286,380)
(6,662) (83,444) 76,782 (4,289) {172,697) (528,372) 355,675 (286,380)




SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For the Eleven Months Ending May 31, 2011

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 120 120 118,868 150,000 1,633,617 1,706,880
Consumer/Gated Shows 48 48 154,251 137,010 937,585 916,272
Devos Performance Hall 147 130 163,516 511,825 997,075 818,748
Banquets 36 34 23,699 22,100 240,081 242,695
Meetings 92 95 25,612 23,750 413,776 280,155
Other 53 38 58,574 17,100 320,434 237,386
GRAND TOTALS 496 465 544,520 861,785 4,542,568 4,202,134
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 24.19% 25.81% 21.83% 17.41% 35.96% 40.62%
Consumer/Gated Shows 9.68% 10.32% 28.33% 15.90% 20.64% 21.80%
Devos Performance Hall 29.64% 27.96% 30.03% 59.39% 21.95% 19.48%
Ballroom Exclusive 7.26% 1.31% 4.35% 2.56% 5.29% 5.78%
Meetings 18.55% 20.43% 4.70% 2.76% 9.11% 6.67%

Other 10.69% 8.17% 10.76% 1.98% 7.05% 5.65%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

DeVos Place
Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2011

ASSETS

1,153,672
718,827
93,466

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

143,887
348,100

36,505
605,161

(850,000)
1,205,278

559,729
(172,696)

$1,965,965

$1,965,965

$1,133,653

$832,312

$1,965,965




SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of May 31, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Van Andel Arena
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

85,637
1,154
12,104
28,814
(59,840)
428,354

141,880

65,590

5,736
2,110
5,002
2,286

718,827



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2010
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 884,269 (387,673) 496,596 916,360
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 884,269 (387,673) (203,404) 216,360

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Base Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 317,343
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,669,836 4,860,700 9,530,536 9,777,929
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,000,000 8,900,000
Revenue Excess (130,164) 660,700 530,536 877,929
Incentive Fee ** - - - 238,379
Total SMG Management Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 555,722

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MAY 31, 2011

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS INCENTIVE FEE

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE

Comments:

May concludes the event activity at Van Andel Arena for the fiscal year.

YD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
103 - 103 111 ®)
555,385 - 555,385 591,650 (36,265)
949,996 . 949,996 1,460,958 (510,962)
1,239,152 - 1,239,152 1,230,438 8,714
2,189,148 - 2,189,148 2,691,396 (502,248)
2,163,626 317,062 2,480,688 2,444,775 35913
4,352,774 317,062 4,669,836 5,136,171 (466,335)
154,304 25,600 179,904 191,113 11,209
183,467 25,800 209,267 226,903 17,636
253,178 30,400 283,578 289,229 5,651
1,313,025 206,400 1,519,425 1,607,955 88,530
106,566 16,300 122,866 133,630 10,764
49,200 7,000 56,200 87,276 31,076
24,681 3,250 27,931 23,956 (3.975)
1,243,896 142,500 1,386,396 1,366,494 (19,902)
3,328,318 457,250 3,785,567 3,926,556 140,989
1,024,456 (140,188) 884,269 1,209,615 (325,346)
o - -

1,024,456 (140,188) 884,269 1,209,615 (325,346)

Overall the facility fell well below expectations as concert revenue
generated during the year trailed behind budget and historical
averages for both the number of shows hosted and the average

revenue generated per show.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED MAY 31, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year;

MONTH May May May

Actual Budget FY 2010
Number of Events 4 5 7
Attendance 33,632 40,000 53,751
Direct Event Income $35,830 $120,642 $173,320
Ancillary Income 117,634 138,571 90,960
Other Income 265,893 219,269 198,176
Indirect Expenses (268,320) (327,214) (326,397)
Net Income $151,037 $151,268 $136,059
YTD YTD 2011 YTD 2011 YTD 2010

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 103 110 100
Attendance 555,385 583,150 561,597
Direct Event Income $949,996 $1,421,509 $1,435,576
Ancillary Income 1,239,152 1,209,184 1,320,375
Other Income 2,163,626 2,263,635 2,264,445
Indirect Expenses (3,328,318) (3,599,354) (3,355,250)
Net Income $1,024,456 $1,294,974 $1,665,146

EVENT INCOME

May fell below expected levels as 3 concerts were hosted during the month with the budget calling

for 4 total shows.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income fell short of budget overall due to the one less concert hosted. Shortfall was offset
some by very good numbers for both Kenny Chesney and Bob Seger dates.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in consistent with forecasted numbers with summer projects (and corresponding

expenses) being ramped up in June.




Event Income

Direct Event income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Anciltary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelty Sales
Booth Cleaning
Audio Visual
Other Ancillary

Total Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements
Advertising
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utitities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income(Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(Loss)

Van Andel Arena
Income Statement
For the Eleven Months Ending May 31, 2011

Current Month Current Month Current Month  Yearto Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year

$12,669 $62,374 (49,705) $151,191 $1,502,087  $1,827,341 (325,254) $1,800,978
230,895 102,311 128,584 180,662 1,704,756 1,417,154 287,602 1,804,499
(207,734) (44,043) (163,691) (158,633)  (2,256,847)  (1,822,986) (433,861)  (2,169,901)
35,830 120,642 (84,812) 173,320 949,996 1,421,509 (471,513) 1,435,576
91,280 100,964 (9,684) 74,112 1,046,403 985,254 61,149 1,102,877
8,622 33,411 (24,789) 4,926 73,134 96,337 (23,203) 86,573
17,877 4,196 13,681 11,122 91,494 96,793 (5,299) 97,337
(181) 0 (181) 800 139 0 139 1,065
36 0 36 0 72 . 0 72 23
0 0 0 0 27,910 30,800 (2,890) 32,500
117,634 138,571 (20,937) 90,960 1,239,152 1,209,184 29,968 1,320,375
56,955 30,320 26,635 32,210 325,736 370,665 (44,929) 374,044
56,955 30,320 26,635 32,210 325,736 370,665 (44,929) 374,044
210,419 289,533 (79,114) 296,490 2,514,884 3,001,358 (486,474) 3,129,995
160,573 129,949 30,624 117,455 1,275,555 1,243,970 31,585 1,297,206
44,000 52,087 (8,087) 44,000 498,724 572,917 (74,193) 520,534
4,365 6,913 (2,548) 4511 63,611 76,083 (12,472) 72,661
208,938 188,949 19,989 165,966 1,837,890 1,892,970 (55,080) 1,890,401
419,357 478,482 (59,125) 462,456 4,352,774 4,894,328 (541,554) 5,020,396
165,672 160,183 5,489 188,021 1,715,799 1,762,013 (46,214) 1,723,972
50,814 42,846 7,968 49,718 465,974 471,306 (5,332) 453,757
(100,330) (72,446) (27,884) (78,015) (787,082) (796,906) 9,824 (775,956)
116,156 130,583 (14,427) 169,724 1,394,691 1,436,413 (41,722) 1,401,773
20,687 21,300 (613) 20,430 220,052 234,300 (14,248) 219,675
20,747 30,742 (9,995) 25,547 294,741 338,162 (43,421) 307,306
4,307 4,996 (689) 1,686 25,932 54,956 (29,024) 24,000
8,077 17,943 (9,866) 15,116 125,756 197,373 (71,617) 151,399
12,114 19,883 (7,769) 5,559 150,561 218,713 (68,152) 129,635
10,535 11,394 (859) 12,588 120,862 125,334 (4,472) 146,025
62,329 77,150 (14,821) 72,524 847,674 848,650 (976) 829,988
13,368 13,223 145 13,223 148,049 145,453 2,596 145,449
268,320 327,214 (58,894) 326,397 3,328,318 3,599,354 (274,036) 3,355,250
151,037 151,268 (231) 136,059 1,024,456 1,294,974 (270,518) 1,665,146
151,037 151,268 (231) 136,059 1,024,456 1,294,974 (270,518) 1,665,146




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Event Summary

For the Eleven Months Ended May 31, 2011

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
21 25 63,325 79,500 193,700 278,854
10 12 48,399 49,500 385,771 275,360
12 20 98,451 173,000 932,934 1,615,619
40 40 236,698 220,000 601,776 548,320
16 13 72,980 61,150 400,702 283,205
99 110 519,853 583,150 2,514,884 3,001,358
21.21% 22.73% 12.18% 13.63% 7.70% 9.29%
10.10% 10.91% 9.31% 8.49% 15.34% 9.17%
12.12% 18.18% 18.94% 29.67% 37.10% 53.83%
40.40% 36.36% 45.53% 37.73% 23.93% 18.27%
16.16% 11.82% 14.04% 10.49% 15.93% 9.44%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Van Andel Arena
Balance Sheet
As of May 31, 2011

ASSETS

2,953,260
486,570
122,337

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

409,880
564,312
968,713
1,181,309

(2,400,000)
785,615
1,027,882
1,024,456

$3,562,167

$3,562,167

$3,124,213

$437,954

$3,662,167




SMG - Van Andel Arena

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of May 31, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Permanent Advertising
DeVos Place
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable

146,347
16,923
59,840

195,010

35,450

33,000

486,570



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2010
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 884,269 (387,673) 496,596 916,360
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 884,269 (387,673) (203,404) 216,360

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Base Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 317,343
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,669,836 4,860,700 9,530,536 9,777,929
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,000,000 8,900,000
Revenue Excess (130,164) 660,700 530,536 877,929
Incentive Fee ** - - - 238,379
Total SMG Management Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 555,722

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

#*+UNAUDITED***

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Rolt FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 532 - 532 494 38
ATTENDANCE 573,924 - 573,924 531,500 42,424
DIRECT EVENT REVENUE 2,603,447 - 2,603,447 2,409,380 194,067
ANCILLARY REVENUE 2,103,486 - 2,103,486 1,907,266 196,220
TOTAL EVENT REVENUE 4,706,933 - 4,706,933 4,316,646 390,287
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 190,779 - 190,779 190,950 (171)
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 4,897,712 - 4,897,712 4,507,596 390,116
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 156,449 - 156,449 169,612 13,163
FINANCE 237,328 - 237,328 221,935 (15,393)
MARKETING 95,323 - 95,323 103,669 8,346
OPERATIONS 1,396,005 - 1,396,005 1,485,525 89,520
EVENT SERVICES 938,542 - 938,542 866,676 (71,866)
BOX OFFICE 89,637 - 89,637 79,211 (10,426)
SALES 341,711 - 341,711 355,664 13,953
OVERHEAD 2,071,109 - 2,071,109 1,936,247 (134,862)

TOTAL OPERATING EXP. 5,326,104 - 5,326,104 5,218,539 (107,565)
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES (428,392) - (428,392) (710,943) 282,551
INCENTIVE FEE - 0 -
NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER (428,392) - (428,392) (710,943) 282,551

OPERATING EXPENSES
Comments:

DeVos Place concludes a very successful fiscal year with the facility
showing an 8% revenue increase over budget and almost 10% revenue
increase over prior fiscal year.




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH June June June

Actual Budget FY 2010
Number of Events 36 29 22
Attendance 29,404 28,590 18,755
Direct Event Income $125,033 $128,956 $81,721
Ancillary Income 181,491 109,651 120,793
Other Income 13,987 13,688 23,510
Indirect Expenses (576,207) (434,879) (512,601)
Net Income ($255,696) ($182,584) - ($286,577)
YTD YTD 2011 YTD 2011 YTD 2010

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 532 494 510
Attendance 573,924 531,500 561,580
Direct Event Income $2,603,447 $2,409,380 $2,447,854
Ancillary Income 2,103,486 1,907,266 1,843,412
Other Income 190,779 190,950 184,547
Indirect Expenses (5,326,104) (5,218,539) (5,048,770)
Net Income ($428,392) ($710,943) ($572,957)
EVENT INCOME

Event income came in consistent with budget for the month.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Angcillary income came in well ahead of budget for the month as spending on catering functions
hosted during the month were well above expectations.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in higher than budget due to summer projects and utilities.




Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelty Sales
Booth Cleaning
Telephone/Long Distance
Electrical Services
Audio Visual
Internet Services
Equipment Rental

Total Ancillary Income
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income(Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(l.oss)

For the Twelve Months Ending June 30, 2011

DeVos Place

Income Statement

Current Month  Current Month Current Month  Yearto Date  Year to Date Year to Date

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
$140,037 $131,544 $8,493 $103,178 $2,776,486 $2,455,740 $320,746 $2,492,062
181,549 125,971 55,578 101,803 2,077,139 1,843,940 133,199 2,168,236
(196,553) (128,559) (67,994) (123,260) (2,250,178) (1,990,300) (259,878) (2,212,444)
125,033 128,956 (3,923) 81,721 2,603,447 2,409,380 194,067 2,447,854
10,120 5,286 4,834 8,380 176,153 127,931 48,222 144,379
101,526 34,249 67,277 55,317 659,718 554,520 105,198 541,299
1,332 1,124 208 3,361 9,561 15,100 (5,539) 14,973
4,832 12,622 (7.790) 16,076 268,143 266,815 1,328 237,495
0 1,040 (1,040) (] 225 21,500 (21,275) 4,395
26,988 28,130 (1,142) 11,524 434,910 431,600 3,310 411,817
22,711 15,003 7,708 18,758 316,675 277,200 39,475 290,952
5,577 2,376 3,201 1,376 63,632 44,000 19,632 49,831
8,405 9,821 (1,416) 6,001 174,469 168,600 5,869 148,271
181,491 109,651 71,840 120,793 2,103,486 1,907,266 196,220 1,843,412
10,706 8,855 1,851 11,738 152,865 132,950 19,915 139,236
10,706 8,855 1,851 11,738 152,865 132,950 19,915 139,236
317,230 247,462 69,768 214,252 4,859,798 4,449,596 410,202 4,430,502
1,357 2,000 (643) 1,802 18,991 24,000 (5,009) 21,739
1,924 2,833 (909) 9,970 18,923 34,000 (15,077) 23,572
3,281 4,833 (1,552) 11,772 37,914 58,000 (20,086) 45,311
320,511 252,295 68,216 226,024 4,897,712 4,507,596 390,116 4,475,813
287,276 225,288 61,988 225,854 2,830,664 2,703,456 127,208 2,723,993
82,513 58,848 23,665 46,389 815,917 706,176 109,741 738,508
(147,777) (122,456) (25,321) (81,100) (1,581,043) (1,469,481) (111,562) (1,507,507)
222,012 161,680 60,332 191,143 2,065,538 1,940,151 125,387 1,954,994
33,474 21,200 12,274 30,924 305,054 254,400 50,654 300,870
27,688 28,058 (370) 26,398 323,996 336,696 (12,700) 288,747
27,183 10,312 16,871 33,314 133,814 123,744 10,070 107,023
57,662 41,941 15,721 60,786 441,724 503,292 (61,568) 471,784
30,002 21,500 8,502 29,346 189,619 258,000 (68,381) 168,882
15,362 17,465 (2,103) 13,303 190,015 209,580 (19,565) 233,403
149,456 119,500 29,956 114,164 1,515,927 1,434,000 81,927 1,364,395
13,368 13,223 145 13,223 160,417 158,676 1,741 168,672
576,207 434,879 141,328 512,601 5,326,104 5,218,539 107,565 5,048,770
(255,696) (182,584) (73,112) (286,577) (428,392) (710,943) 282,551 (572,957)
(255,696) (182,584) (73,112) (286,577) (428,392) (710,943) 282,551 (572,957)

?



SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For the Twelve Months Ending June 30, 2011

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 130 130 123,068 162,500 1,717,168 1,849,000
Consumer/Gated Shows 48 50 154,251 140,000 937,585 935,565
Devos Performance Hall 156 138 174,113 162,600 1,073,003 863,346
Banquets 38 36 26,899 23,400 294,771 256,980
Meetings 103 100 29,819 25,000 475,320 294,850
Other 57 40 65,774 18,000 361,953 249,855
GRAND TOTALS 532 494 573,924 531,500 4,859,798 4,449,596
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 24.44% 26.32% 21.44% 30.57% 35.33% 41.55%
Consumer/Gated Shows 9.02% 10.12% 26.88% 26.34% 19.29% 21.03%
Devos Performance Hall 29.32% 27.94% 30.34% 30.59% 22.08% 19.40%
Ballroom Exclusive 7.14% 7.29% 4.69% 4.40% 6.07% 5.78%
Meetings 19.36% 20.24% 5.20% 4.70% 9.78% 6.63%

Other 10.71% 8.10% 11.46% 3.39% 7.45% 5.62%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

DeVos Place
Balance Sheet
As of June 30,2011

ASSETS

902,408
683,946
123,434

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

317
521,901
28,330
439,645

(850,000)
1,438,257

559,729
(428,392)

$1,709,788

$1,709,788

$990,194

$719,594

$1,709,788




SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of June 30, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Van Andel Arena
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

111,646
1,686
1,331
4,832

22,710

171,741

203,753

112,963

38,150

5,736
2,110
5,002
2,286

683,946



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2010
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 866,601 (428,392) 438,209 916,360
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 866,601 (428,392) (261,791) 216,360

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Base Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 317,343
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,636,885 4,897,712 9,534,597 9,777,929
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,000,000 8,900,000
Revenue Excess (163,115) 697,712 534,597 877,929
Incentive Fee ** - - - 238,379
Total SMG Management Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 555,722

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

***UNAUDITED***

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facllity



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS INCENTIVE FEE

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE

Comments:

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE
103 103 111 (8)
555,385 655,385 591,650 (36,265)
923,869 923,869 1,460,958 (537,089)
1,239,960 1,239,960 1,230,438 9,622
2,163,829 2,163,829 2,691,396 (527,567)
2,473,056 2,473,056 2,444,775 28,281
4,636,885 4,636,885 5,136,171 (499,286)
166,619 166,619 191,113 24,494
210,509 210,509 226,903 16,394
281,847 281,847 289,229 7,382
1,561,372 1,661,372 1,607,955 46,583
119,273 119,273 133,630 14,357
54,227 54,227 87,276 33,049
27,350 27,350 23,956 (3,394)
1,349,087 1,349,087 1,366,494 17,407
3,770,286 3,770,284 3,926,556 156,272
866,599 866,601 1,209,615 (343,014)
0 - -

866,599 866,601 1,209,615 (343,014)

Van Andel Arena concludes a challenging fiscal year as concert

revenue fell well below expecations and past fiscal years. Attendance

for other categories of events was strong, as well as, the Griffins

continue to exceed expectations however it was not enough to offset

the shortfall generated by the lower than expected concert revenue.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH June June June

Actual Budget FY 2010
Number of Events 0 1 3
Attendance 0 8,500 6,249
Direct Event Income ($26,125) $39,449 $41,114
Ancillary Income 808 21,254 8,481
Other Income 309,428 181,140 232,123
Indirect Expenses (441,967) (327,214) (457,544)
Net Income ($157,856) ($85,371) ($175,826)
YTD YTD 2011 YTD 2011 YTD 2010

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 103 111 103
Attendance 555,385 591,650 567,846
Direct Event Income $923,869 $1,460,958 $1,476,691
Ancillary Income 1,239,960 1,230,438 1,328,856
Other Income 2,473,056 2,444 775 2,496,569
Indirect Expenses (3,770,286) (3,929,556) (3,812,794)
Net Income $866,599 $1,206,615 $1,489,322

EVENT INCOME

No events were hosted during the month, however, an adjustment was needed for a missed accrual

related to the late May concerts.

ANCILLARY INCOME

No events were hosted during the month, however, a couple of small adjustments were needed to
clean up a couple of accruals.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in higher than budget, however, consistent with forecast.




Van Andel Arena
Income Statement
For the Twelve Months Ending June 30, 2011

Current Month Current Month Current Month  Yearto Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
Event Income
Direct Event Income
Rental Income $0 $36,737 (36,737) $28,274  $1,502,087  $1,864,078 (361,991)  $1,829,252
Service Revenue 195 46,426 (46,231) 60,780 1,704,950 1,317,226 387,724 1,865,280
Service Expenses (26,320) (43,714) 17,394 (47,940) (2,283,168)  (1,720,346) (562,822) (2,217,841)
Total Direct Event Income (26,125) 39,449 (65,574) 41,114 923,869 1,460,958 (537,089) 1,476,691
Ancillary Income
F&B Concession 271 15,979 (15,708) 1,817 1,046,674 1,001,233 45,441 1,104,694
F&B Catering (186) 1,657 (1,843) 1,240 72,948 97,994 (25,046) 87,813
Novelty Sales 0 3,618 (3,618) 4,327 91,494 100,411 (8,917) 101,664
Booth Cleaning 723 0 723 0 862 0 862 1,065
Audio Visual 0 0 0 1,097 72 0 72 1,120
Other Ancillary 0 0 0 0 27,910 30,800 (2,890) 32,500
Total Ancillary Income 808 21,254 (20,446) 8,481 1,239,960 1,230,438 9,622 1,328,856
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 0 15,410 (15,410) 6,454 325,736 386,075 (60,339) 380,498
Total Other Event Income 0 15,410 (15,410) 6,454 325,736 386,075 (60,339) 380,498
Total Event Income (25,317) 76,113 (101,430) 56,049 2,489,565 3,077,471 (587,906) 3,186,045
Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements 173,544 106,730 66,814 176,131 1,449,100 1,350,700 98,400 1,473,337
Advertising 131,784 52,083 79,701 44,000 630,508 625,000 5,508 564,534
Other Income 4,100 6,917 (2,817) 5,538 67,712 83,000 (15,288) 78,200
Total Other Operating Income 309,428 165,730 143,698 225,669 2,147,320 2,058,700 88,620 2,116,071
Adjusted Gross Income 284,111 241,843 42,268 281,718 4,636,885 5,136,171 (499,286) 5,302,116
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 161,269 160,183 1,086 199,534 1,877,069 1,922,196 (45,127) 1,923,507
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 23,465 42,846 (19,381) 37,479 489,439 514,152 (24,713) 491,236
Labor Allocations to Events (19,609) (72,446) 52,837 (35,374) (806,691) (869,352) 62,661 (811,330)
Net Salaries and Benefits 165,125 130,583 34,542 201,639 1,559,817 1,566,984 (7,167) 1,603,413
Contracted Services 19,510 21,300 (1,790) 16,430 239,562 255,600 (16,038) 236,106
General and Administrative 29,005 30,742 (1,737) 20,820 323,746 368,904 (45,158) 328,126
Operations 21,052 4,996 16,056 15,819 46,984 59,952 (12,968) 39,819
Repair and Maintenance 87,114 17,943 69,171 46,985 212,870 215,316 (2,446) 198,384
Operational Supplies 31,476 19,883 11,593 26,134 182,037 238,596 (56,559) 155,769
Insurance 9,644 11,394 (1,750) 14,368 130,506 136,728 (6,222) 160,393
Utilities 65,673 77,150 (11,477) 102,126 913,347 925,800 (12,453) 932,113
SMG Management Fees 13,368 13,223 145 13,223 161,417 158,676 2,741 158,672
Total Operating Expenses 441,967 327,214 114,753 457,544 3,770,286 3,926,556 (156,270) 3,812,794
Net Income(Loss) From Operations (157,856) (85,371) (72,485) (175,826) 866,599 1,209,615 (343,016) 1,489,322

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(Loss) (167,856) (85,371) (72,485) (175,826) 866,599 1,209,615 (343,016) 1,489,322




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Event Summary
For the Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2011

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

21 25 63,325 79,500 169,127 278,854

10 12 48,399 49,500 385,771 275,360

15 21 125,658 181,500 933,098 1,691,732

40 40 236,698 220,000 600,144 548,320

17 13 72,980 61,150 401,426 283,205

103 111 547,060 591,650 2,489,565 3,077,471
20.39% 22.52% 11.58% 13.44% 6.79% 9.06%
9.71% 10.81% 8.85% 8.37% 15.50% 8.95%
14.56% 18.92% 22.97% 30.68% 37.48% 54.97%
38.83% 36.04% 43.27% 37.18% 24.11% 17.82%
16.50% 11.71% 13.34% 10.34% 16.12% 9.20%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Van Andel Arena
Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2011

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

2,900,004
380,933
99,053
$3,379,990
$3,379,990
137,890
843,230
714,414
1,344,232
$3,039,766
(2,400,000)
845,741
1,027,882
866,601
$340,224
$3,379,990




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of June 30, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 1,508

Ticketing 191,391

Merchandise -

Permanent Advertising -

DeVos Place (171,741)

Operating 242,205
Over 30 Days 84,570
Over 60 Days 33,000
Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable 380,933



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2010
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 866,601 (428,392) 438,209 916,360
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 866,601 (428,392) (261,791) 216,360

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Base Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 317,343
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,636,885 4,897,712 9,534,597 9,777,929
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,000,000 8,900,000
Revenue Excess (163,115) 697,712 534,597 877,929
Incentive Fee ** - - - 238,379
Total SMG Management Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 555,722

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



T
s
&
L5
it
fia

Lk

DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2011

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An 5MG Managed Facllity



DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS
EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

July starts a new fiscal year for DeVos Place with strong year to year
activity and overall bottom line coming in consistent with budget overall.

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
28 449 477 477 -
20,099 492,901 513,000 513,000 -
84,866 2,446,304 2,531,170 2,531,170 -
117,904 1,772,362 1,890,266 1,890,266 -
202,770 4,218,666 4,421,436 4,421,436 -
1,893 216,352 218,245 218,245 -
204,663 4,435,018 4,639,681 4,639,681 -
7,033 169,071 176,104 176,104 -
20,643 209,870 230,513 230,513 -
1,362 102,800 104,162 104,162 -
81,342 1,358,792 1,440,134 1,440,134 -
54,217 912,639 966,856 966,856 -
2,341 76,870 79,211 79,211 -
24,410 338,249 362,659 362,659 -
169,871 1,885,675 2,055,546 2,055,546 -
361,219 5,053,966 5,415,185 5,415,184 -
(156,556) (618,948) (775,504) (775,503) -
- 0 -
(156,556) (618,948) (775,504) (775,503) -
Gener, ger 7
/]
£

Overall revenue was down when compared to budgeted averages, however,
attribute it more to the mix of events and would anticipate the shortfall to be

made up later in the fiscal year.

{rectdr




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JULY 31, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH July July July

Actual Budget FY 2011
Number of Events 28 28 21
Attendance 20,099 22,190 10,079
Direct Event Income $84,866 $143,909 $72,740
Ancillary Income 117,904 158,736 48,783
Other Income 1,893 4,583 6,387
Indirect Expenses (361,219) (451,266) (362,695)
Net Income ($156,556) ($144,038) ($234,785)
YTD YTD 2012 YTD 2012 YTD 2011

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 28 28 21
Attendance 20,099 22,190 10,079
Direct Event Income $84,866 $143,909 $72,740
Ancillary Income 117,904 158,736 48,783
Other Income 1,893 4,583 6,387
Indirect Expenses (361,219) (451,266) (362,695)
Net Income ($156,556) ($144,038) ($234,785)
EVENT INCOME

Event income fell short of budget for the month as conventions hosted during the month were
smaller than what the overall average will be for the year.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income fell short of budget as decorating and electrical fell short of expectations.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in under budget for the month and consistent with prior year.




Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Booth Cleaning
Telephone
Electrical Services
Audio Visual
Internet Services
Equipment Rental

Total Ancillary Income

Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income(Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(Loss)

Current Month  Current Month

DeVos Place
Income Statement
For the Month Ending July 31, 2011

Current Month ~ Year to Date

Year to Date

Year to Date

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
$120,876 $156,483 ($35,607) $90,400 $120,876 $156,483 ($35,607) $90,400
50,075 97,436 (47,361) 28,689 50,075 97,436 (47,361) 28,689
(86,085) (110,010) 23,925 (46,349) (86,085) (110,010) 23,925 (46,349)
84,866 143,909 (59,043) 72,740 84,866 143,909 (59,043) 72,740
5,014 4,115 899 6,609 5,014 4115 899 6,609
37,225 50,342 {13,117) 14,710 37,225 50,342 (13,117) 14,710
634 18,243 (17,609) 1,283 634 18,243 (17,609) 1,283
0 1,728 (1,728) 0 0 1,728 (1,728) 0
21,994 41,243 (19,249) 2,923 21,994 41,243 (19,249) 2,923
28,367 26,960 1,407 11,595 28,367 26,960 1,407 11,595
13,027 3,270 9,757 896 13,027 3,270 9,757 896
11,643 12,835 (1,192) 10,767 11,643 12,835 (1,192) 10,767
117,904 158,736 (40,832) 48,783 117,904 158,736 (40,832) 48,783
60 0 60 3,150 60 0 60 3,150
60 0 60 3,150 60 0 60 3,150
202,830 302,645 {99,815) 124,673 202,830 302,645 (99,815) 124,673
1,357 1,750 (393) 1,802 1,357 1,750 (393) 1,802
476 2,833 (2,357) 1,435 476 2,833 (2,357) 1,435
1,833 4,583 (2,750) 3,237 1,833 4,583 (2,750) 3,237
204,663 307,228 (102,565) 127,910 204,663 307,228 (102,565) 127,910
149,921 231,512 (81,591) 146,344 149,921 231,512 (81,591) 146,344
32,141 60,020 (27,879) 31,402 32,141 60,020 (27,879) 31,402
(63,752) (123,027) 59,275 (33,890) (63,752) (123,027) 59,275 (33,890)
118,310 168,505 (50,195) 143,856 118,310 168,505 (50,195) 143,856
24,434 23,340 1,094 24,597 24,434 23,340 1,094 24,597
17,313 28,475 (11,162) 16,572 17,313 28,475 (11,162) 16,572
2,709 9,812 (7.103) 1,897 2,709 9,812 (7,103) 1,897
34,921 41,822 (7,001) 37,586 34,921 41,922 (7.001) 37,586
7,362 18,083 (11,721) 3,283 7,362 19,083 (11,721) 3,283
15,813 17,192 1,379) 16,775 15,813 17,192 (1,379) 16,775
126,989 129,450 (2,461) 104,615 126,989 129,450 (2,461) 104,615
13,368 13,487 (119) 13,514 13,368 13,487 (119) 13,514
361,219 451,266 (90,047) 362,695 361,219 451,266 (90,047) 362,695
(156,556) (144,038) (12,518) (234,785) (156,556) (144,038) (12,518) (234,785)
(156,556) (144,038) (12,518) {234,785) (156,556) (144,038) (12,518) (234,785)

3



SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report

For the One Month Ending July 31, 2011

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 16 16 11,750 17,840 157,043 229,296
Consumer/Gated Shows
Devos Performance Hall - - - - - -
Banquets
Meetings 5 5 449 1,200 9,905 16,495
Other 7 7 7,900 3,150 35,822 56,854
GRAND TOTALS 28 28 20,099 22,190 202,770 302,645
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 57.14% 57.14% 58.46% 80.40% 71.45% 75.76%
Consumer/Gated Shows 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Devos Performance Hall 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Ballroom Exclusive 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Meetings 17.86% 17.86% 2.23% 5.41% 4.88% 5.45%
Other 25.00% 25.00% 39.31% 14.20% 17.67% 18.79%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

DeVos Place
Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2011

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

1,044,589
427,607
101,095
$1,573,291
$1,573,291
(9.617)
358,215
32,369
516,201
$897,168
0
120,501
712,177
(156,556)
$676,122

$1,573,290




SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of July 31, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Van Andel Arena
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable

42,238

634
28,366
27,121

224,697

8,300

96,251

427,607



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2011
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,071,221 (775,504) 295,717 295,717
Benchmark 750,000 700,000
Excess 1,071,221 (775,504) (454,283) (404,283)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 162,500 162,500 325,000 325,000
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,996,443 4,639,681 9,636,124 9,636,124
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,100,000 9,100,000
Revenue Excess 196,443 439,681 536,124 536,124
Incentive Fee ** - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 162,500 162,500 325,000 325,000

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

ARENA

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JULY 31, 2011

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Faclilty



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT INCOME
ANCILLARY INCOME

TOTAL EVENT INCOME

TOTAL OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

BOX OFFICE
LUXURY SEATING
SKYWALK ADMIN
OVERHEAD

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

LESS INCENTIVE FEE

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE

Comments:

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

2 98 100 100 -
18,428 523,772 542,200 542,200 -
114,309 1,145,139 1,259,448 1,259,448 -
51,633 1,049,922 1,101,555 1,101,555 -
165,942 2,195,061 2,361,003 2,361,003 -
213,801 2,421,639 2,635,440 2,635,440 -
379,743 4,616,700 4,996,443 4,996,443 -
15,134 163,570 178,704 178,704 -
12,660 227,261 239,921 239,921 -
12,222 260,008 272,230 272,230 -
113,202 1,490,139 1,603,341 1,603,341 -
12,188 112,376 124,564 124,564 -
1,207 86,069 87,276 87,276 -
1,611 22,345 23,956 23,956 -
126,088 1,269,142 1,395,230 1,395,230 -
294,313 3,630,910 3,925,222 3,925,222 -
85,430 986,790 1,071,221 1,071,221 -
0 - -
85,430 985,790 1,071,221 1,071,221 -

The Arena started the new fiscal year off in very good fashion with a sold
out Taylor Swift concert and a very well attended Keith Urban show. The

first half of the fiscal year continues to look like a strong concert season.

General Magaagé




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED JULY 31, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH July July July

Actual Budget FY 2010
Number of Events 2 2 3
Attendance 18,428 17,000 12,233
Direct Event Income $114,309 $78,898 $36,926
Ancillary Income 51,633 42,508 38,134
Other Income 213,801 215,508 170,705
Indirect Expenses (294,313) (327,101) (302,027)
Net Income $85,430 $9,813 ($56,262)
YTD YTD 2012 YTD 2012 YTD 2011

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 2 2 3
Attendance 18,428 17,000 12,233
Direct Event Income $114,309 $78,898 $36,926
Ancillary income 51,633 42,508 38,134
Other Income 213,801 215,508 170,705
Indirect Expenses (294,313) (327,101) (302,027)
Net Income $85,430 $9,813 ($56,262)

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in ahead of budget for the month as both concerts hosted during the month were
very successful shows.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in a little ahead of budget. The Taylor Swift show, while selling very well, is a
below concert average concert night. Shortfall was offset by stronger than anticipated numbers for the
Keith Urban show.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month. A prior month adjustment was made in
Operational Supplies which led to the negative total expense in July.




Van Andel Arena
Income Statement
For the Month Ending July 31, 2011

Current Month Current Month Current Month  Year to Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
Event Income
Direct Event Income
Rental Income $94,818 $73,474 21,344 $64,459 $94,818 $73,474 21,344 $64,459
Service Revenue 137,579 92,852 44,727 157,876 137,579 92,852 44,727 157,876
Service Expenses (118,088) (87,428) {30,660) (185,409) (118,088) (87,428) (30,660) (185,409)
Total Direct Event Income 114,309 78,898 35,411 36,926 114,309 78,898 35,411 36,926
Ancillary Income
F&B Concession 36,345 31,958 4,387 28,336 36,345 31,958 4,387 28,336
F&B Catering 5,780 3,314 2,466 1,003 5,780 3,314 2,466 1,003
Novelty Sales 9,508 7,236 2,272 8,777 9,508 7,236 2,272 8,777
Audio Visual 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 18
Total Ancillary Income 51,633 42,508 9,125 38,134 51,633 42,508 9,125 38,134
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 27,855 35,174 (7,319) 27,542 27,855 35,174 (7.319) 27,542
Total Other Event Income 27,855 35,174 (7,319) 27,542 27,855 35,174 {7,319) 27,542
Total Event Income 193,797 156,580 37,217 102,602 193,797 156,580 37,217 102,602
Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements 138,216 121,335 16,881 94,970 138,216 121,335 16,881 94,970
Advertising 44,000 52,083 (8,083) 44,000 44,000 52,083 (8,083) 44,000
Other Income 3,730 6,916 (3,186) 4,193 3,730 6,916 (3,186) 4,193
Total Other Operating Income 185,946 180,334 5,612 143,163 185,946 180,334 5,612 143,163
Adjusted Gross Income 379,743 336,914 42,829 245,765 379,743 336,914 42,829 245,765
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 173,641 160,923 12,718 189,105 173,641 160,923 12,718 189,105
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 39,728 45,035 (5,307) 35,853 39,728 45,035 (5,307) 35,853
Labor Aliocations to Events (82,414) (72,806) (9,608) (63,213) (82,414) (72,806) (9,608) (63,213)
Net Salaries and Benefits 130,955 133,152 (2,197) 161,745 130,955 133,152 (2,197) 161,745
Contracted Services 24,776 22,140 2,636 22,591 24,776 22,140 2,636 22,591
General and Administrative 18,827 27,758 (8,931) 19,753 18,827 27,758 (8,931) 19,753
Operations 915 4,742 (3.827) 1,853 915 4,742 (3,827) 1,853
Repair and Maintenance 12,112 17,599 (5,487) 6,819 12,112 17,599 (5.487) 6,819
Operational Supplies (2,803) 17,550 (20,353) 17,528 (2,803) 17,550 (20,353) 17,528
Insurance 9,644 10,840 (1,196) 5,480 9,644 10,840 (1,196) 5,480
Utilities 86,345 79,833 6,512 52,744 86,345 79,833 6,512 52,744
SMG Management Fees 13,542 13,487 55 13,514 13,542 13,487 55 13,514
Total Operating Expenses 294,313 327,101 (32,788) 302,027 294,313 327,101 (32,788) 302,027
Net Income(Loss) From Operations 85,430 9,813 75,617 {56,262) 85,430 9,813 75,617 (56,262)
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Adjusted Net Income(Loss) 85,430 9,813 75,617 (56,262) 85,430 9,813 75,617 (56,262)

3



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Event Summary
For the One Month Ended July 31, 2011

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
2 2 18,428 17,000 193,796 156,580
2 2 18,428 17,000 193,797 156,580
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00%  0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
#iHHH# 100.00% 100.00%  100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Van Andel Arena
Balance Sheet
As of July 31, 2011

ASSETS

2,708,443

985,908
114,410

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

796,271
928,032
685,255
895,413

$3,808,761

$3,808,761

80,819
337,539
85,431

$3,304,972

$503,789

$3,808,761




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of July 31, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 60,233

Ticketing 334,863

Merchandise 25,971

Permanent Advertising -

DeVos Place (27,121)

Operating 440,014
Over 30 Days 118,948
Over 60 Days 33,000
Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable 985,908



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2012

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2011
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,071,221 (775,504) 295,717 295,717
Benchmark 750,000 700,000
Excess 1,071,221 (775,504) (454,283) (404,283)

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Base Fee 162,500 162,500 325,000 325,000
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,996,443 4,639,681 9,636,124 9,636,124
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,100,000 9,100,000
Revenue Excess 196,443 439,681 536,124 536,124
Incentive Fee ** - - - -
Total SMG Management Fee 162,500 162,500 325,000 325,000

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



GRAND RABIDS-KENT COUNTY
e S e e T e T R e TP TS T e R D
CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONYENTION, SHOW & $PORTS FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Board
CAA Finance Committee
From: Robert J. White
Subject: June 30, 2011, Administrative Financial Statements (Preliminary Year-End)
Date: August 5, 2011

The attached Balance Sheet and Income Statement have been reformatted to provide additional
information concerning the Convention/Arena Authority administrative account (unconsolidated) —
excluding facility manager financial activity (separately reported).

These year-end statements are preliminary, having been prepared on a cash basis. The Balance Sheet
includes a two-year comparative financial position at June 30 (preliminary) for Fiscal Years 2010 and
2011. The Income Statement provides a line item comparison of accounts for the current fiscal year as
compared to a similar period in the prior fiscal year. In addition, the Income Statement provides a
comparison of current year budget to prior year {FY 2010} audit. It will allow the reader to compare
expenditure trends with full-year budgetary allowances.

items of interest in the two financial statements are explained as follows:
Balance Sheet (Unconsolidated):

e The cash and investments position decreased by $2.0 million from June 30, 2010. Year-to-date
capital spending increased by $2.7 million over prior year.
¢ Fund balance decreased by $2.0 million from the June 30, 2010 level.

Preliminary Year-End Revenue/Expense:

e Parking revenues have increased by 4.9%. Revenues came in slightly below expectations.

e Interest income was budgeted (2% rate est.) to increase by 35%, but has declined by (39%) from
the prior fiscal year. The County Investment Pool is currently paying less than 1% interest. This
revenue item will come in approximately $234,000 below budget.

e The Miscellaneous Revenue account includes a $250,000 June payment from SMG F&B as a
contribution toward the cost of the Arena expansion project.



e The “Utilities” expenditure account includes electric, gas, steam, and water/sewer for the
facilities. Electric represents 63% of the total. Summer 2010 electric usage pushed expenses
slightly higher than expected.

e Pedestrian safety (police overtime) has seen a significant increase. Officer billings were
increased from $47.30 per hour in FY 2010 to $56.44 (+19%) in the current year. The rate
increase is primarily attributed to a significant increase in required pension contributions.

e Parking management includes city staffing and equipment maintenance expense for the DeVos
Place® facility. This expense is reduced by (8%) from prior year. Automation achieved in
September 2009 was expected to result in a 30% cost savings in the current year. Staffing
reductions have not been fully realized.

e Capital R/R/A spending is increased by 399% over prior year trend. The Arena concourse
addition, snowmelt system replacement, and installation of the LED ribbon board contributed to
this sharp increase in capital expense.

Hopefully, these reports provide a more on-point analysis of administrative activities over the course of
the fiscal year. These reports continue to be updated on a monthly basis.



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Balance Sheet (Unconsolidated)

Preliminary Year-End
June 30, 2011
2010 2011
Assets
Cash - Operating $ 62,776 $ 204,150
Investments - Kent County 23,489,142 21,346,338
Capital Assets (Net) 659,549 788,841
Total Assets $24,211,467 $ 22,339,329

Liabilities & Fund Balance

Accounts Payable $ 117,497 $ 260,836

Fund Balance 24,093,970 22,078,493

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance $24,211,467 $ 22,339,329




%4 DNS WOy uoinqIuod Juswasinquuial [endes 000°0sT$ s3pnpoul (€)
Apnis spaau eyded uua3-guo] Bualy Ue 10§ 000 0S$ JO urMO[[R UB Sapn|du (7)

9S8 TI01c § FétscLye o
V6E8CLTT SSH6IT e
1°68 6¥87¢SC9 0TT6LEE €601 929°0SC L 811°TES°E
(€on) L3VVE A 816 @ 0007501 SELYS
6T 196°€T £06°CC 8y 000 £06°CC
0001 001°6 - 0001 000°5T -
9°0L 109°L 08191 8491 000°0% 901°S1
¥'8 00v'VL £29°89 &) 000°1L 8LIVL
1'6€ 789°T€1 86£°S6 9% P8y 1€l 975501
$'86¢ o€ 1LEE £5€°9L9 6’16V 005°801° SY1v69
- 000°ST 000°ST - 000°ST 000°sT
(€€ 000°0$ 000°SL - 000°SL 000°SL
- - - 0°001 000001 -
9'¢ £01°6S SLI‘ES 90 005°€S SLI‘ES
9'¢e S68°L1 £6€°€1 0'TLS 00006 £6€°€1
891 799°66 8pESs 0 000°s8 8¥€°s8
(6'L) 829°9%1 171651 (s°0¢) we6ll 169°1L1
99 ¥Tr981°T $97°050°C 9T 008°L61°T 8SHIVIT
86 SO 1¥9¥ LY9sCy (Z'0) 880VEl T LSO 1HIY
1°561 (¢ 18608 L1756 (5'89) 000°0€ LI1T'S6
(6'LE) ¥62°981 910°00€ (343 000°SEY e
6t 878°€T6 y11°088 LS 919786 6L6°€06
o1 000°0sT’€  $ 000°0s6'T $ (€ TLY989°T $  6EV618C $
aguey) 0€/9 - 1/L 0€/9- I/L aduey) 1e3png npny
23e)u3adI2g 1107 Ad 010Z Ad a3e)uadIdg 1107 Ad 0107 Ad
(si1seg yse)) ¢NBQ-0]-183X jenuuy

(Areurmipaad) Y107 ‘0€ dunp papuy 1edx 3y) 1o,

Jdue[eq puny ul saduey)) pue sIMIPUIdXF ‘SaNUIAIY JO JUIWI) LIS
AJLIOYINY BUAIY/UONUIATO)) A)uno)) Judd-spidey pueis

suonIppyAudwaoe(day/tedsy - viad (1)

‘SALON

potsad jo pua ‘aduejeg

poutad jo 3uuuidaq ‘vouejeg
saampuadxyg 1940

SINUIANY Jo (Aduandnja(q) ssadxy

saamyipuadxy 810,
IoyyQysanddng -
soueInsuy] -
Uy JO JuswaInsold -
aapenu| AusiaAl(q -
SIDIAIOG [BUOISSIJOI] -
sujouag/safep -
uolENSIUTWPY
syoofoid rende) -
VN fended
uoIsssiuwo)) spodg -
dAD -
uSiedure) -
Sunayre -
WaWISSasSY qId -
Suideospuey -
K121eS URLNSAPa ] -
juswageuey Supje -
saninn -
suopesadQ
:saamyipuadxy

SINUIANY [BI0L
SNO3UR|[OSTA
1sal1a3u]

Bunjred

DIAS WolJ SI9jsuel ]
:SINUIAIY



GRAND RABIDS-KENT COUNTY

|

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. CONVENTION, SHOW & SPORTE FACILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Board
CAA Finance Committee
From: Robert J. White
Subject: July 31, 2011, Administrative Financial Statements
Date: August 24, 2011

The attached interim Balance Sheet and Income Statement are formatted to provide additional
information concerning the Convention/Arena Authority administrative account (unconsolidated) -
excluding facility manager financial activity (separately reported). Consolidated statements will
continue to be compiled on a quarterly basis.

These statements are prepared on a cash basis. The Balance Sheet includes a two-year comparative
financial position at July 31 for Fiscal Years 2011 and 2012. The Income Statement provides a line item
comparison of accounts for the current fiscal year as compared to a similar period in the prior fiscal
year. In addition, the Income Statement provides a comparison of current year budget to prior year (FY
2011-subject to audit) actual. It will allow the reader to compare expenditure trends with full-year
budgetary allowances.

Items of interest in the two financial statements are explained as follows:
Balance Sheet (Unconsolidated):
e The cash and investments position decreased by $.4 million from June 30, 2011. Minimal
receipts were offset by routine monthly disbursements.
e Fund balance decreased by $2.0 million from the July 31, 2010 level.
July Revenue/Expense:
e Minor activity was recorded during the month.
Updated Year-End for 2011 (Year Ended June 30, 2011):
e When the current-year budget (FY2012) was adopted (June 3 Board action), the financial

statements included an estimate of prior year loss equaling ($2.7M). This loss was driven by an
estimated $3.6M transfer to the capital account (normal annual capital transfers total $1.0M).



e The attached Income Statement notes a preliminary FY2011 loss of ($1.7M). After consolidation
with SMG financial statements, this loss will increase to approximately (52.2M).

These reports are intended to provide a summary analysis of administrative activities over the course of
the fiscal year. These reports continue to be updated on a monthly basis.



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Balance Sheet (Unconsolidated)

July 31, 2011
2010 2011
Assets
Cash - Operating $ 193,672 $ 1,594
Investments - Kent County 22,937,637 21,160,074
Capital Assets (Net) 659,549 788,841
Total Assets $ 23,790,858 $ 21,950,509

Liabilities & Fund Balance

Accounts Payable $ 46,701 $ 111,078

Fund Balance 23,744,157 21,839,431

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance $ 23,790,858 $ 21,950,509




820°0L9°CC $

L6y 010tC $

L6Y°010°€T v6€8CL YT
WLLTET) s 19 3 (69%°0F€) (L68°LILT)
€ELEIST Zal (s'¢¢€) L3L19TY 809509
- - L'S6 00529 LSV VE
- - 61 000°¥T 196°€T
- - L'6TC 000°0€ 001°6
96¢ vyl I8 000°0S 109°LT
¥l - (9°8) 000°1L SH9°'LL
- - - €99°9L -
6L6°01 - (ozn) ¥TL9T1 TS9°TEL
¥S9°LE - (€1L) 000996 9cE ILE"E
- - £€e 000°001 000°SL
- - 99 12L°8S €01°SS
- - 9'L9 000°0¢€ S68°LI
- - v'9 000°801 128101
- - 611 6LS€1T 208°061
£95°201 - L'z 009°6v€°C $06°887°C
65681 T1c (c91) SIE 126 ¢ TILL89F
- - (£°68) 000°0€ 136°08C
- - o€ 000°90T 0£0°00T
65681 112 6€l 000°060°1 00,956
- $ - $ (100 8I€S65C ' 000°0ST°€ $
I€/L - 1/L I€/L-1/L aBuey> 18png Kreurmipag
TI0Z Ad 1107 Ad adejuadsag 107 Ad 1107 Ad
e -0 -1edx jenuuy

Z10T ‘0€ dunp Suipuy 183X 3Y) 104
due[eg puny ul saSuey) pue sAINIPuUIdXF ‘SINUIAIY JO JUIUI}EIS

AuoyIny BudIY/UORUIAUO)) AHUno)) Judd-spidey puein

suonIppyuswiaoeiday/iteday - v (1)
'SALON

polsad jo pud ‘ddueeg

pouiad jo Suruuidaq ‘sduejeg
saan)ipuadxy J2AQ

SINUIAIY JO (A2udIdJa() SSIIXA

saanyipuadxy (230

pYQy/saddng -
JoueInsuyj -
UV JO JUSWAMO0Id -
aanenuy ANsIdAI(] -
S9OIAISS [BUOISSIJOI] -
$391A19G Sunpnsuo) -
s)jouag/sadem -

uolRASIUIUPY
s1o9foiq ende) -

V4N [ended
suods/gAD - BunoIei -
uRWISSasSSy Id -
Surdeosspue -
Kjayeg ueLnSApRd -
yuswaSeuey Sunjre -
sannn -

suonesad

:saanjipuadxy

SINUIAINY [€I0],
SNOJUB[[IISIN
Jsalajug
3uppred

DIAIS WOy sigjsuel |
:SINUIANY



oad

*SwL4 JAGWSW O SY) $O YOR3 10) PUR YIOMIBU OQJY SY3 JOj Sweu pueiq ayl st Oag

‘SWiLy JaquIsW Juapuadaput JO ¥J0MI3U OGg 1RUOLIRUISIUL 3y JO 1sed swio) pue ‘adjuesens AQ paliwi) Auedwod
N B ‘pailwi] euotIeusalu] 0gg 4O L3quwSWw “§ A 3y st ‘diysisuised AlLliqer) paliwl) asemelaq e ‘411 ‘vsn odag

10T ‘0€ {unr

NV1d 1llanv

Ajuoyiny eualy/uoljuaAuo) A3uno) jud) - spidey pueln



I_ 1 wwm&

oad

L77 577 OF
‘sanoA Ainu1y Ausp

*3DUSLUSAUOD
1noA Je noA yum 3aaw 03 Addey g 1jIImM am ‘sialjewl asay3 SuLuI9OUOD UOLIRWLIOUL J3YLiN) 341S9P NOA pinoys

1107 ‘0€ dunr papua 1eak ay) 404 pue jo se (Ajuoyiny ay3) AJlioyiny eusuy/uoljusaAuo?)

A3uno) jJuay- spidey puelo ayl Jo SJUSWSIL]S JeIDURULY Y] JO Jipne ay] jo Sutwi) pue adods pauueld

aY3 03 103dsal YIM Sia3ewl SNOLIBA SJUSWIND0P SULMO)104 3y °ssad04d Bulliodal jeidueuty 3yl SUl99SISA0
ut sanLjLgisuodsal UnoA 03 JueAd)al pue juediyiudis ‘uawspn( jeuolssajold ano ut ‘aqe jey) jpne juawalels
JeloueuUL) 9Y3 0] pale)al sialjew 3ulpiedal NoA YIIM S3e3iunwiwod 03 sn a1inbalt spaepuels |euolssajoud

uesiyolyw ‘spitdey pueun

AILIOYyINY BUAIY /UOIIUSAUOY) AJUNo) JUdY - spidey puelo
29731WIWO0Y adueUL{ 3Y] JO SIaqUIdW

110Z ‘6T Isndny



|_ 7 8k

oad

8 NOILVIOINNWWOD 3DON3IAN3d3ANI

L ANITIWLL LIdNV T1VY3A0
9-5 ONIWIL ANV 3d0DS dINNV'Id - ADILVHLS 1IdNV

v S3AILI3rd0O INIWIOVONA
¢ WV3L 3D1A43S LN3ITD ANV NOILONAOYULNI

auL|3nQ uolssnosL|




l_ M mmm&

odag

ULa]4apM 13yoey
91e120SSY

SLHIOM oxer
1owag

astoquwel e uyor
198euURWY J01USS

uouiadn( eldLiled
1012341Q Juswasdesuy

*31q1ssod Jualxa 15938343 9y} 03 SJU3LI JNO 03 3JIALSS Jo AJtnuiuod apraoud o3 1dwaile am ‘0ag
1e Ao1j0d Jo J9)1eW B SY ‘MO0)9q 1Jeyd jeuoijeziuesdio ayl ul palst) aJe jipne s eak siy) 10} SISquIS wea) Juswasesus InQ

“ydom 3ipne pauue)d ay3 Jo adods pue ainjeu ayj pue ‘}ipne ayj J0j SIA1ID3[QO |)RISA0 N0

40 Arewiwins e yym noA apiaoad o3 paugisap st 1odad styj "L 10Z ‘0€ sunf papus Jeah ayi 104 AJLIoyiny ay3 Jo sjusawalels
Jetoueuly ayj Jo ipne ayj Joj ueld Uno saquidsap 110dad 8uiMO)10) 3y ‘AlLioyiny 9yl 01 3D1AISS JO 3q 0] paseald aue ap

wea| 9J1AJaS JU3l]) pue Uuoi3dNPou|



|_ ¥ 98ed

oad

‘si9)jew
8utyiodau jerdueuyy s, Ajioyiny ayl jo pawuojut Ajajeradosdde 3doay st 939331WW0Y) adueUL4 9Y] Jey] aJnsul .

*J1eah ay3 noysnodyl papasu se siajjew 3uiyrodal pue 3uljunodde gulpiesal I NSUo0) .
"SJUSWAJR]S JelduRUL) JO 3dUBNSSL A|SWiL} p1emo] JuUSWaseuew YIM HIOM -

*}ipne JNo SuLINp patjljuapl
SOSSOUNROM |eLID)ReW puR $3IDUSLDLJOP JURDLIUSIS 331IWWO0TY) 3duUeULY SY) pue juswaseuew 03 3JedIUNWWOoY)

“|0J3u0d

Jeulalul yons Sullladu0d aduelnsse Aue aplAold 03 Jou pue saunpadoud jpne uno Suluiwialap Jo asodind

a3 10} palinbai st Suipuelsiapun Yons ‘JISASMOH 'SJUaWale]s jeldueul) ayl Jo pne ayj ue)d o3 joJ3uod
jewaiut s, ALIoyIny ay3 Jo SUlpuRISISpPUN JUBIDLLINS B UIR)GO M Jey] aiinbal osje spiepuels Jeuolssajold

"pa323313p 3q J0u Aew “Is1X2 A9Y] 4L ‘pnedy 1o SI0LID
Jey3 ysL Jualayul ay) 03 303alqgns St pue sjuawWwalels jerdueUL) 8yl Jo Adeindde ay) Jo ajuesens Aue 1o 0)
2A11B)24 2duRINSSe 91INj0Sqe apIACId JOU S0P BILISWY JO S3eIS Pajlun ay3 ul pajdadde Ajjeiauas spiepuels
Sulllpne Y3im aouepaodde Ul JIpne uy “pnely 1o 10119 AQ pasned 1aylaym ‘sjuawalelssiwi jeLiajew Jo

931} ale sjuawWalels JeldueRUL) 343 I3YI3YM IN0ge SdURINSSE 9)qRUosSeal uielqo 01 llpne ue wuoylad pue ueld

1107 ‘0€ aunf papua 1eak ay) 1o} pue Jo
se AJLoYINY aY3 JO SJUSWSIL]S jelduRUL 3Y3 JO IPNE 3y) 03 10adsal YIM S2A13D3(Q0 N0 SJUWNDOP SULMO))0) YL

SaA1303[qO Juswasesuy



|_ G 98ed

odag

"SJUDAS JedA JUDIIND JuedLLUBLS pue suoijelado JO S3INSAI JUIDIY .

~ "9jesado
SW2)SAs pajejas pue SpU0dad jeldueul) YdLYM Ul JUSWUOIAUS 133ndwod sy pue swalsAs Jnoge uoljeulioju]

‘pneuy 10 10119 jer1ajew e 10319p
10 juanalid 03] jle) Aew sainpadoud pue swalsAs 1043U0D 3y} eyl Ajtqgissod ayj pue JUSWUOIAUS J043U0D 3Y| -

"SW9)SAS 1043U0D Y] JO SSBUALIDYJS aY3 Sulziugodal a1049q ‘pnely
10 10119 JeLiajew 03 Sjuaulalels jeldueuts ayl Jo AIqiquadansns ayl ot - AJLIOYINY SYI ULYIIM HMSLI JUI3Yu|

:J0 UOoLIRIIPISUOD SapN)dUL ABaje]s Jpne unQ
‘paiinbau

8ul1sa] pajlelap Jo 92189p 9y} Sululunalap ui ‘ojenidoidde asaym ‘S)0JJUOD RUISIUL UO SdUBLAS Al .

*Alioyiny ay3 03 diydads si0loey aAljejuenb pue aAlejenb
4O uoljeuapisuod uodn paseq JedA ayj INoYsnouyy spioysatyl Ajeriajew ajenjeAs o3 anuljuod pue dojaasq -

"99)31WWOo)
aoueuUl{ 9yl pue judWSSeueW JOJ UIIDUOD JO Seae I3YJ0 pue seale Hsi I9YSiy U0 $3DIN0S3I SNJ04 .

:3pN)oul SjeoS INQ “ILpNe Y3 JO UOIINDIX3 pue
Suluued ayy Jo syoadse Jje Ul JUSWSAJOAUL JoSeuRW pUR 101D SAISUDIXD SIAJOAUL ASaleJIS PN N0 ‘||RISAQ

sulwi] pue adodog pauueld - A8aje.ls Jpny



|_ 9 aded

odad

sainpasoud jesijhjeuy

sasuadxa pue satitjiget] paniddy
syjasse jeude) .

SoldeAlaDal pue SNUoAIY

SJUSWISAAUL pue yse) -«

:9pNJOUL 1)IM 1404J3 ILPNE JRJISA0 INO UL SN0} Jo seale Asewrd ay) “Suiisal aAljuelsqns
pue acuelL}a. 10} $)043U0D SULISI] JO UOLFRUIGUIOD B JIBIUS }]IM ILPNE INO0 ‘JUaWsSSasse jelltut 1no uodn paseq

(panunuo)) Suiwi] pue adods pauueld - A8ajeuis pny



I_ / 98ed

odd

A uoluldQ pue sjuawalels jeldueutd jeutd Jo aseaay
SJUSWIR]S JelduUBULY 1jel(] JO MIIASY

A 8u11sa] aAluRISgNS
A sue)d 3pny doaAag

A Bul1sa] Jo JuaIX3 pue auNjeN SuLWiIlA(Q

A §]0J3U0)) JJRISAQ SSISSY

A 8utyoaw suluueld

ssauisng ay3 pueisiapun

:Ajuoyiny ayl
JO SJUSWaJe)S JelduRUL) JBNUUR 3Y] JO JLpNe UNo 03 pJesal YIm npayds pajedidijue ino sjuasaidal Buimoljol ayl

auljawi UPNY [|eJ9A0



]_ 8 wmmn_

odd

‘UOLJRULIOJUL J2YIIN} 104 S19)13] ISOY] 0] 19421 aseald ‘Ajuoyiny ayy Aq ol pasude
se asuapuadapui 03 30adsat yim Ajuioyiny ayy Jo sanniqisuodsal ay3 ajeindlls osje sia33d) 3yl SIDIAISS INO

J0 9duewlo)iad ay3 pue duspuadapul 03 paedal yUMm saljuoyine Aiojendal utellad pue spiepuels jeuolssajoud
U3IM 3duepIodIR Ul SaLiqisuodsal dno aquIdsap | 107 ‘Gz Isn8ny pajep noA 03 19333) Juswiagesus InQ

uoljediunwuwiod) QUEQUCQQGU:_



Tet: 616-774-7000 200 Ottawa Avenue NW, Suite 300
Fax: 616-776-3680 Grand Rapids, Ml 49503
4 www.bdo.com

CLIENT COPY
August 25, 2011 KEEP FOR YOUR RECORDS

Robert White

Finance Director

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
303 Monroe Avenue NW

Grand Rapids, Michigan 49503

Dear Mr. White:
Agreement to Provide Services

This agreement to provide services (the “Agreement”) is intended to describe the nature and
scope of our services.

Audit

As agreed, BDO USA, LLP (“BDO” or “we”) will audit the statement of net assets of the Grand
Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority (the “Authority”) as of June 30, 2011 and the
related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year
then ended, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. The financial records and financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority’s
management. In that regard, management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting, establishing and maintaining proper
accounting records, selecting appropriate accounting principles, safeguarding Authority assets,
designing and implementing programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, complying with
relevant laws and regulations, and making all financial records and related information
available to us.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We are also
responsible for communicating with those charged with governance what our responsibilities are
under generally accepted auditing standards, an overview of the planned scope and timing of
the audit, and significant findings from the audit. The term “those charged with governance” is
defined as the person(s) with responsibility for overseeing the strategic direction of the
Authority and obligations related to the accountability of the Authority, including overseeing
the financial reporting process. For the Authority, we agree that the Finance Committee meets
that definition.

At the conclusion of our audit, we will submit to you a report containing our opinion as to
whether the financial statements, taken as a whole, are fairly presented based on accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. If, during the course of our work,
it appears for any reason that we will not be in a position to render an unqualified opinion on
the financial statements, or that our report will require an explanatory paragraph, we will
discuss this with you. It is possible that, because of unexpected circumstances, we may
determine that we cannot render a report or otherwise complete the engagement. If, for any

BDO USA, LLP. a Delaware limited liability partnership, is the U.S. member of 8DO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of
the intemational BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.



B D O Mr. Robert White
y August 25, 2011

Page 2

reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed an
opinion, we may decline to express an opinion or decline to issue a report as a result of the
engagement. If, in our professional judgment, the circumstances require, we may resign from
the engagement prior to completion.

We will design our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatements, whether caused by error or fraud. Our work will be based
primarily upon selected tests of evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements and, therefore, will not include a detailed check of all of the Authority’s
transactions for the period. Accordingly, an audit performed in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America is not a guarantee of the accuracy
of the financial statements, and there is a risk that material errors or fraud may exist and not
be detected by us. Also, an audit is not designed to detect errors or fraud that are immaterial
to the financial statements. However, we will inform you of any material errors or fraud that
come to our attention. We will also inform you of possible illegal acts that come to our
attention unless they are clearly inconsequential. In addition, during the course of our audit,
financial statement misstatements may be identified, either through our audit procedures or
through communication by your employees to us, and we will bring these misstatements to your
attention as proposed adjustments. Management is responsible for recording such adjustments
in the financial statements, after evaluating their propriety based on a review of both the
applicable authoritative literature and the underlying supporting evidence from the Authority’s
files; or otherwise concluding and confirming in a representation letter provided to us at the
conclusion of our audit that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements are, both individually
and in the aggregate, immaterial to the financial statements taken as a whole. At the
conclusion of our audit we will communicate to the Finance Committee all such uncorrected
misstatements.

An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. An audit is not designed to provide assurance on
internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control.
However, we are responsible for ensuring that you are aware of any significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses that come to our attention during our engagement.

BDO is retaining the Authority as a client in reliance on information obtained during the course
of our continuing client reacceptance procedures. Patricia Duperron has been assigned the role
of engagement director and is responsible for directing the engagement and issuing the
appropriate report on the Authority’s financial statements.

Email Communication

In connection with this engagement, we may communicate with you or others via email. As
emails can be intercepted, disclosed, used, and/or otherwise communicated by an unintended
third party, or may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed, we
cannot ensure that emails from us will be properly delivered and read only by the addressee.
Therefore, we disclaim and waive any liability for interception or unintentional disclosure of
email transmissions, or for the unauthorized use or failed delivery of emails transmitted by us in



Mr. Robert White
! BD 4 August 25, 2011

Page 3

connection with the performance of this engagement. In that regard, you agree that we shall
have no liability for any loss or damage arising from the use of email, including any punitive,
consequential, incidental, direct, indirect, or special damages, such as loss of revenues or
anticipated profits, or disclosure of confidential information.

Ownership of Working Papers

The working papers prepared in conjunction with our audit are the property of our Firm,
constitute confidential information, and will be retained by us in accordance with our Firm’s
policies and procedures.

Reproduction of Audit Report

If the Authority plans any reproduction or publication of our report, or any portion of it, copies
of masters’ or printers’ proofs of the entire document, or if there is no proof, a copy of the
entire document in its final form, should be submitted to us in sufficient time for our review
and written approval before printing. You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final
reproduced material for our written approval before it is distributed. If, in our professional
judgment, the circumstances require, we may withhold our written approval.

Posting of Audit Report and Financial Statements on Your Website

You agree that, if you plan to post an electronic version of the financial statements and audit
report on your website, you will ensure that there are no differences in content between the
electronic version of the financial statements and audit report on your website and the signed
version of the financial statements and audit report provided to management by BDO. You also
agree to indemnify BDO from any and all claims that may arise from any differences between the
electronic and signed versions.

Review of Documents for Sale of Securities

The audited financial statements and our report thereon should not be provided or otherwise
made available to recipients of any document to be used in connection with the sale of
securities (including securities offerings on the Internet) without first submitting copies of the
document to us in sufficient time for our review and written approval. If, in our professional
judgment, the circumstances require, we may withhold our written approval.

Management Representations and Indemnification

As required by auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we will
request certain written representations from management at the close of our audit to confirm
oral representations given to us and to indicate and document the continuing appropriateness of
such representations and reduce the possibility of misunderstanding concerning matters that are
the subject of the representations. Because of the importance of management’s representations
to an effective audit and provided the audited financial statements and our report thereon are
not included in a registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933 or in a Private
Placement Memorandum, the Authority agrees to release and indemnify BDO from any liability



BD Mr. Robert White
y August 25, 2011

Page 4

and costs relating to our services rendered under this Agreement attributable to any knowing
misrepresentations by management.

Availability of Records and Personnel

You agree that all records, documentation and information we request in connection with our
audit will be made available to us (including those pertaining to related parties), that all
material information will be disclosed to us, and that we will have the full cooperation of, and
unrestricted access to, your personnel during the course of the engagement.

You also agree to ensure that any third party valuation reports that you provide to us to support
amounts or disclosures in the financial statements (a) indicate the purpose for which they were
intended, which is consistent with your actual use of such reports; and (b) do not contain any
restrictive language that would preclude us from using such reports as audit evidence.

Assistance by Your Personnel

We also ask that your personnel prepare various schedules and analyses for our staff. However,
except as otherwise noted by us, no personal information other than names related to Authority
employees and/or customers should be provided to us. This assistance will serve to facilitate
the progress of our work and minimize costs to you.

Other Services

We are always available to meet with you and other executives at various times throughout the
year to discuss current business, operational, accounting and auditing matters affecting the
Authority. Whenever you feel such meetings are desirable, please let us know. We are also
prepared to provide services to assist you in any of these areas. We will also be pleased, at your
request, to attend your Board or Finance Committee meetings.

Independence

Professional and certain regulatory standards require us to be independent, in both fact and
appearance, with respect to the Authority in the performance of our services. Any discussions
that you have with personnel of our Firm regarding employment could pose a threat to our
independence. Therefore, we request that you inform us prior to any such discussions so that
we can implement appropriate safeguards to maintain our independence.

Dispute Resolution Procedure

If any dispute, controversy, or claim arises out of, relates to, or results from the performance or
breach of this Agreement, excluding claims for non-monetary or equitable relief (collectively, the
“Dispute”), either party may, upon written notice to the other party, request non-binding
mediation. A recipient party of such notice may waive its option to resolve such Dispute by non-
binding mediation by providing written notice to the party requesting mediation and then such
parties hereto shall resolve such Dispute by binding arbitration as described below. Such
mediation shall be assisted by a neutral mediator acceptable to both parties and shall require the
commercially reasonable efforts of the parties to discuss with each other in good faith their



B D 0 Mr. Robert White
/ August 25, 2011

Page 5

respective positions and different interests to finally resolve such Dispute. If the parties are
unable to agree on a mediator within twenty (20) days from delivery of the written notice, either
party may invoke the mediation service of the American Arbitration Association (the “AAA”).

Each party may disclose any facts to the other party or to the mediator that it, in good faith,
considers reasonably necessary to resolve the Dispute. However, all such disclosures shall be
deemed in furtherance of settlement efforts and shall not be admissible in any subsequent
proceeding against the disclosing party. Except as agreed to in writing by both parties, the
mediator shall keep confidential all information disclosed during mediation. The mediator shall
not act as a witness for either party in any subsequent proceeding between the parties.

Unless waived, such mediation shall conclude after the parties have engaged in good faith
settlement negotiations, but nonetheless are unable to resolve the Dispute through the mediation
process. The attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by each party in such mediation shall be borne
solely by such party, except that the fees and expenses of the mediator, if any, shall be borne
equally by the parties.

Any Dispute not resolved first by mediation between the parties (or if the mediation process is
waived as provided herein) shall be decided by binding arbitration. The arbitration proceeding
shall take place in the city in which the BDO office providing the majority of services involved
exists, unless the parties agree in writing to a different locale. The arbitration shall be
governed by the provisions of the laws of the state in which the arbitration is to take place
(except if there is no applicable state law providing for such arbitration, then the Federat
Arbitration Act shall apply) and the substantive law of such state shall be applied without
reference to conflicts of law rules. In any arbitration instituted hereunder, the proceedings shall
proceed in accordance with the then current Arbitration Rules for Professional Accounting and
Related Disputes of the AAA, except that the Arbitration Panel (as defined below) shall permit
discovery that is consistent with the scope of discovery typically permitted by the Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure and/or is otherwise customary in light of the complexity of the Dispute and
the amount in controversy. Any Dispute regarding discovery, or the relevance or scope thereof,
shall be determined by the Arbitration Panel (as defined below).

The arbitration shall be conducted before a panel of three persons, one selected by each party,
and the third selected by the two party-selected arbitrators (the “Arbitration Panel”). The
party-selected arbitrators shall be treated as neutrals. The Arbitration Panel shall have no
authority to award non-monetary or equitable relief, but nothing herein shall be construed as a
prohibition against a party from pursuing non-monetary or equitable relief in a state or federal
court. The parties also waive the right to punitive damages and the arbitrators shall have no
authority to award such damages or any other damages that are not strictly compensatory in
nature. In rendering their award, the Arbitration Panel shall issue in writing findings of fact and
conclusions of law. The Arbitration Panel shall not have authority to grant an award that is not
supported by substantial evidence or that is based on an error of law, and such absence of
substantial evidence or such error of law may be reviewed on appeal to vacate an award based
on the standard of review otherwise applicable in the Federal Appellate Court responsible for
the jurisdiction in which the arbitration is venued, and without regard to any heightened
standard of review otherwise applicable to an arbitration decision rendered by the AAA. The
confidentiality provisions applicable to mediation shall also apply to arbitration. The award
issued by the Arbitration Panel may be confirmed in a judgment by any federal or state court of



BD Mr. Robert White
y August 25, 2011

Page 6

competent jurisdiction. No payment of any award or posting of any bond of any kind whatsoever
is required to be made or posted until such Dispute is finally determined.

In no event shall a demand for arbitration be made after the date on which the initiation of the
legal or equitable proceeding on the same Dispute would be barred by the applicable statute of
limitations or repose. For the purposes of applying the statute of limitations or repose, receipt
of a written demand for arbitration by the AAA shall be deemed the initiation of the legal or
equitable proceeding based on such Dispute.

Fees

Our charges to your Authority for the audit services described above will be $16,200. We also
will bill you for our out-of-pocket expenses, not to exceed $250.

This engagement includes only those services specifically described in this Agreement; any
additional services not specified herein will be agreed to in a separate letter. In the event you
request us to, or we are required to, respond to a subpoena, court order, government
regulatory inquiries, or other legal process against the Authority or its management for the
production of documents and/or testimony relative to information we obtained and/or prepared
during the course of this or any prior engagements, you agree to compensate us for all time we
expend in connection with such response, at our regular rates, and to reimburse us for all
related out-of-pocket costs that we incur.

Our fees and costs will be billed monthly, and are payable upon receipt. If we do not receive
any notice of dispute within 10 days of your receipt of the invoice, we will conclude that you
have seen the invoice and find it acceptable.

Third Party Use

BDO will perform the professional services provided in connection with this engagement solely
for the benefit and use of the Authority. BDO does not anticipate and does not authorize
reliance by any other party on its professional services. Any amendment to this provision must
be made through a written document signed by the Authority and BDO.

Miscellaneous

This Agreement is intended to cover only the services specified herein, although we look
forward to many more years of pleasant association with the Authority. This engagement is a
separate and discrete event and any future services will be covered by a separate agreement to
provide services.

Many banks have engaged a third party to electronically process cash or debt audit confirmation
requests, and a few of those banks have mandated the use of this service. To the extent
applicable, the Authority hereby authorizes BDO to participate in this electronic confirmation
process through the third party’s website (e.g., by entering the Authority’s bank account
information to initiate the process and then accessing the bank’s confirmation response) and
agrees that BDO shall have no liability in connection therewith.



B D O Mr. Robert White
4 August 25, 2011

Page 7

Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such a manner as to
be effective and valid under applicable laws, regulations, or published interpretations, but if
any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed prohibited, invalid, or otherwise unenforceable
for any reason under such applicable laws, regulations, or published interpretations, such
provisions shall be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition, invalidity, or
unenforceability and such revised provision shall be made a part of this Agreement as if it was
specifically set forth herein. Furthermore, the provisions of the foregoing sentence shall not
invalidate the remainder of such provision or the other provisions of this Agreement.

d e & * &

We believe the foregoing correctly sets forth our understanding; however, if you have any
questions, please let us know. If you find the foregoing arrangements acceptable, please
acknowledge your agreement by signing and returning to us a copy of this Agreement and
retaining a copy for your files.

Very truly yours,

220 sy LoP

Certified Public Accountants

ACKNOWLEDGED:

GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY

By:

: Date:
Robert White, Finance Director

G:\ADMIN\CLIENT\163858\201 1\GR KCCAA 2011 ENG.LTR.DOCX



Item g

GRAND RABIDS-KENT COUNTY

Memorandum
To: CAA Board
From: Rich MacKeigan, Executive Director
Date: August 24, 2011
Re: Application to Liquor Control Commission for Special License

As we move forward with planning the operational aspects of the upcoming International Wine,
Beer & Food Festival, the CAA will need to apply to the Michigan Liquor Control Commission
for a Special (24-Hour) On-Premise License. This license allows nonprofit, religious, fraternal,
civic, or patriotic organizations to obtain a one-day license to sell alcoholic beverages (beer,
wine, and liquor) to the public for on-premise consumption.

Specific requirements for the Special On-Premise License include:

1. Profits from the sale of alcoholic beverages must go to the organization and not to
any individual.
2. The chief local law enforcement officer in the governmental unit must approve

the request where the event is to be held.

No more than 5 licenses are issued to individual organizations each calendar year.

4, Proof of nonprofit status must be provided with the application unless the
applicant is a national organization or has obtained previous special licenses.

b

The license fee is $25.00 for each separate, consecutive day of the event. This is the same
process we went through last year, and I am recommending we apply for this license as the cost
is minimal, to allow for greater flexibility on the operational side.

Action requested: Approval to submit an application to the Michigan Liquor Control
Commission for a Special On-Premise License.



